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LEDIES AND GENTLMEN!

MESSAGE FROM 

ROSNEFT’S PRESIDENT

Message from Rosneft’s President

ANNUAL REPORT

Last year saw Rosneft make a quan-
tum leap and transform itself into 
a leader in Russia’s fuel and energy 
sector. Thanks to our acquisition of 
Yuganskneftegaz at the end of 2004 
and its successful integration into 
our corporate structure, we have 
increased our production figures over 
threefold to 74.56 mln tonnes, and we 
now rank third in terms of oil produc-
tion in Russia.
Rosneft did not stop at this, however. 
By the end of 2005, Rosneft ranked 
second among Russian oil majors in 
terms of daily production levels. Over 
the next few years, we plan to increase 
production by 7% a year and to reach 
a level of around 100 mln tonnes by 
2010 through the development of the 
Vankor field, the Sakhalin-1 project, 
as well as growth in production at 
Yuganskneftegaz, Severnaya Neft and 
Verkhnechonskneftegaz. By 2015, 

“first oil” at the Sakhalin-1 project from 
the Yastreb drilling rig into Sakha-
linmorneftegaz’s system. The start 
of this project’s operations phase is 
an important landmark, as we are 
planning that over 50% of the future 
increase in our oil production will be 
from the development of shelf deposits. 
During the initial period of Sakhalin-1’s 
development, oil will be delivered only 
to Rosneft’s refinery in Komsomolsk-
on-Amur, but later the transshipment 
terminal at De-Kastri will be commis-
sioned and exports will start.
In addition, as a result of intensified 
exploration works, we have signifi-
cantly revised our former estimates 
of the Vankor field’s potential. We can 
now state with confidence that over 
a 30-year development period, we 
will produce over 400 mln tonnes of 
oil at Vankor. Oil production of up to 
33 million tonnes per year is antici-
pated in 2014, and beginning in 2008, 
we intend to start deliveries to the 
East Siberia – Pacific Ocean strategic 
export pipeline.
Rosneft significantly expanded the 
range of markets to which it supplies 
crude last year. February 2005 saw 
the start of oil deliveries to China, 
and flow via the Caspian Pipeline 

Consortium system increased some 
25-fold. Crude began to be transport-
ed by railroad from Severnaya Neft’s 
resources to Belarus refineries.
Our significant successes in our 
operations over 2005 again prove 
that Rosneft is one of the world’s 
most efficient and dynamic oil com-
panies. Over the last 7 years, our 
proved oil reserves have increased 
some 15-fold, and with reserves now 
totaling approximately 2 bln tonnes, 
we rank second in the Russia, having 
a reserve life of 28 years.
Rosneft’s business is based on 
specific priorities. In the area of 
management, these priorities are to 
centralize and vertically integrate 
business processes; in development – 
to develop and pursue a long-term 
strategy; in production – to ensure a 
regional balance of industrial assets; 
and in interaction with other compa-
nies – to build partnerships.
It is our belief that these priorities 
are at the root of our current suc-
cess, and there is every reason to 
believe that as one of the leaders of 
Russia’s oil and gas industry Rosneft 
will become one of the world’s lead-
ing energy corporations in the very 
near future.

Rosneft plans to produce over 140 
mln tonnes annually through the 
development of the Sakhalin-4 and 
Sakhalin-5 projects, the East-Sugdin-
skoye field, and a number of promising 
areas on the Caspian, Azov and Black 
Sea shelves.
I want to comment particularly on 
some of the most significant events of 
last year. We succeeded in fully restor-
ing drilling and well-repair facilities 
at Yuganskneftegaz, allowing us to 
increase daily production from a level 
of 138,000 tonnes/day up to 149,500 
tonnes/day by the end of the year (an 
increase of 8.3%) and, thanks to the 
well-coordinated work by our special-
ists, we are confident that by 2010, 
our main production enterprise will 
increase production by 1.5 times – to 
over 200,000 tonnes of crude a day.
The outstanding event of 2005 was the 
supply, from October 1 onwards, of the 

President of Rosneft
Sergey Bogdanchikov



4 5

STRUCTURE 

PRODUCTION ENTERPRISES
 Yuganskneftegaz
 Purneftegaz
 Selkupneftegaz
 Vankorneft
 Severnaya Neft
 Polar Lights
 Sakhalinmorneftegaz
 Sakhalin Projects
 Grozneftegaz
 Krasnodarneftegaz
 Stavropolneftegaz
 Dagneft
 Dagneftegaz
 Caspoil

OF ROSNEFT Structure of Rosneft

REFINING ENTERPRISES
 Komsomolsk Refinery
 Tuapse Refinery
 MZ Nefteprodukt

SALES ENTERPRISES
 Nakhodkanefteprodukt
 Vostoknefteprodukt
 Vostochny Neftenalivnoy Terminal
 Arkhangelsknefteprodukt
 Smolensknefteprodukt
 Murmansknefteprodukt
 Kubannefteprodukt
 Tuapsenefteprodukt
 Stavropolye
 Kabardino-Balkarskaya Fuel Company
 Karachayevo-Cherkessnefteprodukt
 Artag
 Altainefteprodukt
 Kurgannefteprodukt
 Yamalnefteprodukt

SERVICE ENTERPRISES
 Rosnefteflot
 All Russia Bank of Regional Development
 Neftegarant
 Neftepolis

RESEARCH
In 2005, Rosneft established a Corporate Research and Development 
Center (CRDC), combining all the company’s research and develop-
ment divisions. The structure of the CRDC is as follows:
 SakhNIPImorneft Institute
 Rosneft-NTTs
 YuNG-NTTs Ufa

ANNUAL REPORT



6

ROSNEFT BOARD OF DIRECTORS (2005)

Igor Sechin
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Yuri Medvedev
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Sergey Bogdanchikov
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Oleg Gordeev
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Sergey Naryshkin
Chief of Staff of the Cabinet of Ministers

Andrey Reus
Deputy Minister of Industry and Energy

ROSNEFT MANAGEMENT BOARD (beginning of 2005)

Sergey Bogdanchikov
President, Chairman of the Management Board

Nikolay Borisenko
First Vice President

Sergey Alexeev
First Vice President
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First Vice President
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MANAGEMENT

ROSNEFT IN 2005

RESULTS AND EVENTS
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ROSNEFT IN 2005

RESULTS AND EVENTS Resourse base

According to the annual independent 
audit of Rosneft’s oil and gas reserves 
conducted by the international audit-
ing firm DeGolyer & MacNaughton, 
as of December 31, 2005, Rosneft 
has estimated net proved reserves of 
18.9 bln barrels of oil equivalent (boe), 
which include 14.9 bln barrels (2.05 
bln tonnes) of oil and 24.4 trillion cubic 
feet (691 bln m3) of gas according to 
the SPE classification.
Rosneft’s probable and possible re-
serves were estimated at 10.9 and 9.8 
bln barrels of oil equivalent (boe), re-
spectively, which include 8.3 bln barrels 
(1.14 bln tonnes) of oil and 15.7 trillion 
cubic feet (444 bln m3) of probable re-
serves of gas and 7.2 bln barrels (987 
mln tonnes) of oil and 15.4 trillion cubic 
feet (434 bln m3) of possible reserves 
of gas, according to the SPE classifica-
tion. 
DeGolyer & MacNaughton also iden-
tified for the first time risked best 
estimates of prospective resources for 
a number of Rosneft’s ongoing explo-
ration projects, such as the Sakhalin 
offshore projects, West Kamchatka, 
Kurmangazy, acreages in the vicinity of 
Vankor field in the Krasnodar Territory 
as well as certain other projects. The 
best estimates of prospective re-
sources taking into account economic 
risks are estimated to be 7.7 bln bar-
rels of oil equivalent (boe) (equity basis), 

which include 7.2 bln barrels (997 mln 
tonnes) of oil and 2.8 trillion cubic feet 
(79 bln m3) of gas. 
In 2005, 83,300 meters of exploration 
wells were drilled in 2005, as com-
pared with 70,200 m. a year before (all 
data on exploration drilling and seismic 
surveys include 100% of all projects 
that Rosneft is involved in). The level 
of effectiveness of exploratory drill-
ing was double the 2004 figure – 932 
tonnes of oil and 16 mln m3 of gas per 
meter drilled.
13,100 linear km. of 2D seismic explo-
ration works and 4,700 sq. km. of 3D 
works were performed.
An increase in the effectiveness of 
exploration works was brought about 
by the performance of large volumes 
of works on prospective areas of the 
Vankor field in the Krasnoyarsk Ter-
ritory and adjacent licensed areas 
(Vankorneft) and on the shelf of the 
Sea of Okhotsk.
The total increase in oil and gas con-
densate reserves constituted 157.1 
mln tonnes, 64.6 mln tonnes of which 
was from exploration works, 51.0 mln 
tonnes from reappraisal and produc-
tion drilling, and 41.5 mln tonnes from 
acquisition of assets.
The total increase in gas reserves con-
stituted 55.1 bln m3, with 52.1 bln m3 of 
this from exploration works and 
3.0 bln m3 from acquisition of assets.

ACQUISITIONS

In October 2005, Rosneft 
reached agreement on the 
purchase from Interros of a 
25.94% stake in Verkhne-
chonskneftegaz. Verkhne-
chonskneftegaz holds the 
development license for the 
Verkhnechonsk oil and gas con-
densate field in the Irkutsk Ob-
last, with recoverable C1+C2 
reserves of 201.6 mln tonnes 
of oil and 3.4 mln tonnes of gas 
condensate. In-place reserves 
of natural gas are estimated 
at 95 bln m3 (total reserves 
of natural and associated gas 
stand at 129.2 bln m3).
In December 2005, Rosneft 
won the auction for the right 
to develop and extract oil and 
gas at the East-Sugdinskoye 
petroleum site in the Irkutsk 
Region, located close to the 
Verkhnechonsk field. Category 
C3 gas reserves are estimated 
at 42 bln m3, C3 oil reserves 
at 60 mln tonnes, and D2 
reserves at 150 mln tonnes. 
Rosneft is confident that the 
East-Sugdinskoye reserves 
may increase substantially 
during exploration.
These acquisitions are part of 
Rosneft’s consistent strat-
egy to increase its oil and gas 
production potential through 
promising reserves in East-
ern Siberia. The first Eastern 
Siberian project commenced by 
Rosneft in 2003 is the devel-
opment of the Vankor group 
of fields in the Krasnoyarsk 
Territory.
In May 2005, Rosneft’s sub-
sidiary – Severnaya Neft – won 
the auction for exploration 
and production rights at the 
Vorgamusyursk petroleum 
site. Recoverable hydrocarbon 

reserves total some 32 mln 
tonnes and may increase sub-
stantially during the explora-
tion period.
In June 2005, Rosneft acquired 
a 34% stake in Selkupneftegaz 
(which holds a license for the 
Kynsko-Chaselskaya group of 
fields) from NOVATEK, bringing 
its stake in the company up to 
100%.

PRODUCTION

Production of oil and gas con-
densate by Rosneft in 2005 to-
taled 74.56 mln tonnes (73.87 
mln tonnes when taking into 
account Rosneft’s 50% stake 
in Polar Lights), an increase of 
3.44 times over 2004 (due to 
Yuganskneftegaz, acquired at 
the end of 2004; YNG’s pro-
duction in 2005 totaled 51.2 
mln tonnes). 61.4 mln tonnes 
was produced in Siberia, 1.9 
mln tonnes in the Far East 
(not counting the “first oil” at 
Sakhalin-1), 6.15 mln tonnes 
in the North-West, and 5 mln 
tonnes in the South.
An important achievement was 
the restoration in full of drilling 
and well-repair facilities at 
Yuganskneftegaz, allowing daily 
production to increase from a 
level of 138.000 tonnes/day 
up to 149.500 tonnes/day (by 
8.3%) by the end of 2005.

By the end of 2005, Rosneft 
ranked second in Russia in 
terms of daily production of oil.

The greatest increase in oil 
production volumes over 2005 
was achieved by Severnaya 

Neft – 42%, up to 4.875 mln 
tonnes (due to continuing drill-
ing at Gamburtsev Swell fields 
and transferring wells to arti-
ficial lifting). Last year saw the 
placing in operation of Phase I 
of the Khasyrey energy depot 
(Severnaya Neft), which will 
allow the reservoir pressure 
maintenance system to be in-
creased to its design capacity 
and oil production to increase 
at the Gamburtsev Swell fields.
The increase in oil production 
volumes at Krasnodarnefte-
gaz totaled 27% or 1.47 mln 
tonnes. In November 2005, at 
the Chumakovskaya site in the 
south of the Slavyansko-Tem-
ryuk petroleum zone, Rosneft’s 
subsidiary, Krasnodarneftegaz, 
achieved a promising flow of 
clean, dry crude oil at a depth 
of 3.500 m. Representatives of 
Krasnodarneftegaz are confi-
dent that the Chumakovskaya 
site will become a springboard 
for future successful explora-
tion works in the Slavyansko-
Temryuk licensed area.
Grozneftegaz achieved produc-
tion increases of 11.4%, up to 
2.2 mln tonnes of oil (due to the 
restoration of objects and the 
increase of the producing well 
stock). 
Sakhalinmorneftegaz’s produc-
tion increased by 1.8% (as a 
result of the putting on stream 
of lateral wells at the Odoptu-
More field).
Commercial production of oil 
and gas commenced in the 
Sakhalin-1 project in October 
2005.
Rosneft produced 13.1 bln m3 
of gas, an increase of 39.55% 
compared with the previous 
year, due to the commissioning 
of gas treatment facilities with 
an annual rate of production 

RESOURCE BASE
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PRODUCTION Production

of 3.2 bln m3 at Purneftegaz, and the 
commissioning of two gas control units 
at Krasnodarneftegaz. 8 bln m3 was 
produced in Siberia, 1.4 bln m3 in the Far 
East, 226 bln m3 in the North-West and 
3.4 bln m3 in the South.
As of January 1, 2006, the operating 
well stock comprised 17.219 oil wells, 
with the share of idle wells at 15.9%. 
The increase in the well stock resulted 
from placing on stream 384 oil wells 
(312 from drilling), 58 gas wells, as 
well as the re-activation of idle wells 
following repairs. To maintain the pro-
ducing well stock in working order, 392 
teams made over 27.700 routine and 
capital repairs of wells over the course 
of 2005.
Exploration drilling exceeded 1 mln 
meters.

operating oil wells have been 
drilled. Oil from Chaivo has 
started to be delivered to the 
Komsomolsk Refinery, and gas 
to Khabarovsk Territory con-
sumers (a contract has been 
concluded with Khabarovsken-
ergo and Khabarovskgaz for 
the supply of 1.5 bln m3 a year). 
Production volumes at the 
end of 2005 totaled 6,000 
tonnes a day.
Initially, oil will be delivered only 
to Rosneft’s refinery in Kom-
somolsk-on-Amur. The trans-
shipment terminal at De-Kastri 
will be commissioned later, and 
exports will start.
Upgrading of the Orlan drilling 
rig was completed in October 
2005, and the rig was installed 
at the drilling point. At the 
beginning of March 2006, a 
well was drilled to pump drilling 
waste. The phased group drill-
ing of operating wells was com-
menced. The drilling technology 
used involves extended reach 
drilling.
Over 2005, equipment was de-
livered for the Chaivo onshore 
oil and gas processing facilities, 
intended to receive crude from 
the Orlan drilling rig. The crude 
will be refined to a condition 
suitable for pipeline export, and 
the gas to a market standard 
for delivery to Russia’s Far 
Eastern market.

SAKHALIN-3
Rosneft and the Chinese 
Petroleum Corporation (SI-
NOPEC) have signed a protocol 
on the establishment of a joint 
enterprise for exploration of 
the area (Rosneft – 49.8%, 
Sakhalin Oil Company – 25.1%, 
SINOPEC – 25.1%) which will 
become the project operator, 
as well as an agreement on 

interim financing of geological 
research and exploration works 
in the Veninsky sector prior to 
the formation of the project’s 
corporate structure. Seismic 
surveys have been conducted 
over a 700 km2 area, with 3D 
geological research performed 
at an area of over 300 km2. 
A zonal exploratory drilling 
design has been prepared, and 
selection of the South-Ayash-
sky structure for exploratory 
drilling has been substantiated, 
with geological surveys con-
ducted at the proposed drilling 
site. The technical construction 
design has been prepared and 
preparatory works for drilling 
the first marine exploration 
well are underway. The techni-
cal construction design has 
also been prepared and pre-
paratory works for drilling the 
first marine exploration well 
are complete.

SAKHALIN-4
2D seismic research data 
has been reinterpreted, and a 
3,000 km2 3D seismic sur-
vey conducted, including a 
3D seismic survey as part of 
the Sakhalin-5 project (East 
Schmidt block). The license for 
the exploration of the area has 
been transferred to Zapad-
Schmidt Neftegaz.

SAKHALIN-5
The 2D seismic research data 
has been reinterpreted and a 
3,000 km2 3D seismic sur-
vey conducted, including a 3D 
seismic survey as part of the 
Sakhalin-4 project (West 
Schmidt block).
As part of the Kaygansko-
Vasyukansk development 
project, the Legenda drilling 
platform drilled an explora-

STRATEGIC PROJECTS

VANKOR GROUP OF FIELDS 
The Company’s largest project in East-
ern Siberia, which it has been involved 
in since 2003, is the Vankor group of 
fields. On the Vankor field alone, Ros-
neft anticipates producing a total of 
420 mln tonnes of oil over 30 years, 
reaching annual production of 33 mln 
tonnes by 2014. Moreover, additional 
exploration at the 13 licensed sec-
tors surrounding the Vankor field show 
significant potential for increasing 
resources and reserves. Prospective 
resources according to the Russian 
classification stand at 606 mln tonnes 
(according to D&M’s best estimate – 
581 mln tonnes), with possible produc-
tion reaching as high as 54 mln tonnes 
per year (excluding the Pendomaya-
khsky, Vadinsky and Tukalandsky 
sectors). Through the use of state-of-
the-art technologies to develop the 
fields, the oil recovery factor can be 
increased from 34% to 41%, which has 
led to an increase in recoverable re-
serves of 65 mln tonnes – comparable 
to the discovery of a new field.
The most wide-scale works at the 
present time are being developed on 
the Vankor field. Today, a significant 
amount of geological exploration work 
as been conducted at the field, infra-
structure is being built and production 
wells are being drilled, making the field 
closer to being ready for commercial 
development. As a result of exploration 
drilling in 2005, Vankorneft achieved 
a record oil flow rate from one well of 
more than 1.200 tonnes per day.

SAKHALIN-1
The Sakhalin-1 project is the most dy-
namic of all the Sakhalin shelf projects 
in which Rosneft is involved. The main 
event of 2005 was the supply, from 
October 1 onwards, of the first oil 
from the Yastreb drilling rig, into the 
Sakhalinmorneftegaz system. Since 
then, two operating gas wells and five 

tion well 2,705 m. deep in the 
Udachnaya structure, achiev-
ing an oil flow of 300 m3 a day. 
In October, additional tests 
were conducted at the Pela 
Leich well, leading to a flow of 
oil of 380 m3 a day. Re-inter-
pretation of 3D data continued 
(from the results of Pela Leich 
Well No. 1).

WEST-KAMCHATKA SHELF
The Korea National Oil Corpo-
ration (KNOC) has decided to 
participate in this project and 
an Interim Finance Agreement 
for the exploration works has 
been signed. On December 14, 
2005, KNOC acquired a 40% 
stake in the project manage-
ment company from Rosneft. 
An operating company, Kam-
chatkaneftegaz, has been 
established and registered. 
The environmental impact 
study required by the licensing 
agreement has been completed. 
7,588 linear km. of 2D seismic 
research has been completed, 
and a gravity-magnetic survey 
conducted. Basic formats and 
the long-term environmental 
monitoring program required 
to accompany the exploration 
works have been developed.

KURMANGAZY 
(KAZAKHSTAN)
 A consortium without the 
formation of a legal entity 
serves as a joint structure for 
implementing this project, with 
stakes in the consortium divid-
ed as follows: KazMunayTeniz 
(a KazMunayGaz subsidi-
ary) — 50%; RN-Kazakhstan 
(a Rosneft subsidiary) — 25% 
(until the Russian side exercis-
es its option, RN-Kazakhstan 
has rights and obligations in 
the amount of 50%); Russian 
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Production

party’s option — 25%. On January 1, 
2005, the Republic of Kazakhstan 
Law on Amendment to Several Legal 
Acts Concerning Taxation took ef-
fect. The amendments adopted made 
it possible to resume negotiations 
on the PSA, and on July 6, 2005, the 
parties signed the Production Shar-
ing Agreement and the Joint Opera-
tion Agreement.

In 2005, primary distillation volumes at 
Rosneft’s refineries totaled 10.49 mln 
tonnes. Refining volumes increased by 
12.5% over 2004.
Primary distillation volumes at other 
refineries totaled 11.62 mln tonnes (of 
which 93% was refined at YUKOS’ re-
fineries and 7% at KrasnodarEKOneft).
Since 1999, Rosneft has been imple-
menting an investment program for 
the development of its refineries. The 
Tuapse and Komsomolsk refineries 
are being rebuilt and re-equipped. To 
retain and expand the markets for 
sales of refinery products, Rosneft is 
reconstructing the facilities without 
shutting down the refineries.

STRATEGIC PROJECTS

KOMSOMOLSK REFINERY
In 2005, the Komsomolsk Refinery 
refined 6.2 mln tonnes of oil, as com-
pared with 5.2 mln tonnes the previous 
year. Oil refining levels totaled 60.1% 
as compared with 59.6% in 2004.
2005 saw the commissioning of a 
diesel fuel hydrogen refining plant with 
a design capacity of 800,000 tonnes a 
year and a sulfur production unit with 

REFINING

The sale of oil to China began in Febru-
ary 2005, with sales volumes reaching 
4.4 mln tonnes by the end of the year. 
Deliveries take place via the Caspian 
Pipeline Consortium system from 
Grozneftegaz, Yuganskneftegaz and 
Purneftegaz. As of November 2005, 

“early” oil from the Sakhalin-1 project 
started to be delivered to the Komso-
molsk Refinery.

SALES

OIL DELIVERIES
In 2005, Rosneft exported 46 mln 
tonnes of oil and condensate, and 
supplied 26.8 mln tonnes to the 
domestic market.
Oil was exported by traditional 
means, via Transneft’s trunk pipe-
line system, via Sakhalinmornefte-
gaz’s own pipeline network, and by 
railroad transport.
22.2 mln tonnes of oil were deliv-
ered to Russian refineries in 2004, 
including 10.5 mln tonnes to Ros-
neft refineries, 124,600 tonnes 
to mini-refineries, and 11.62 mln 
tonnes to other refineries.
Sales to the Russian market com-
prised over 4.6 mln tonnes of oil.

SALE OF OIL PRODUCTS
As of December 31, 2005, Ros-
neft’s retail network consisted of 
over 100 oil depots and over 650 
service stations, with 69 service 
stations operating under fran-
chise agreements.
In 2005, Rosneft sold 21.7 mln 
tonnes of oil products, of which 
13.3 mln tonnes were exported 
and 8.4 mln tonnes sold on the 
domestic market.
Oil product sales by Rosneft’s 
sales divisions totaled 5.67 mln 
tonnes as compared with 3.78 
mln tonnes a year earlier. Of this 
volume, 1 mln tonnes of oil prod-
ucts were sold at service sta-
tions, as compared with 881,000 
tonnes in 2004. 1,600 tonnes of 
oil products were sold per service 
station.
Transshipment services totaled 
20.44 mln tonnes, including 18.99 
mln tonnes for export.

a capacity of 15 tonnes a day. These 
units enable the production of environ-
mentally safe diesel fuel with a sulfur 
content which complies with global 
standards, as well as the recovery of 
hydrogen sulfide.
Once reconstruction is complete, oil 
refining levels at the refinery will reach 
99.3%, profits from oil refining will 
grow almost fourfold, output volumes 
will reach 6.7 mln tonnes of oil prod-
ucts a year, with refining capacity at 7 
mln tonnes.

TUAPSE REFINERY
Refining volumes at the Tuapse Refin-
ery in 2005 remained at the same level 
as the previous year – 4.1 mln tonnes. 
However, due to the acquisition of an 
additional stake in the refinery at the 
end of 2004, 100% of oil refined comes 
from the Company’s own resources. Oil 
refining levels totaled 55.8% as com-
pared with 55.3% in 2004.
New stands on the AT-1 and AT-2 
units were placed in operation at the 
plant in 2005 following reconstruction.
Once reconstruction is complete, oil 
refining levels at the refinery will reach 
95.6%, and refining capacity will stand 
at 12 mln tonnes.

ANNUAL REPORT
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SOCIAL 

POLICY

Rosneft’s main focus in implementing 
its environmental policy in 2005 was 
compliance with environmental legis-
lation, statutory acts and documents 
calling for reductions in production 
waste and recycling methods; ensur-
ing the integrity and restoration of 
contaminated land; ensuring the safe 
and accident-free operations of facili-
ties, etc.
To ensure occupational safety, meas-
ures were taken in 2005 to provide 

In accordance with its long-term pro-
gram for improving production and liv-
ing standards for its employees, Ros-
neft continued to implement its social 
programs over the course of 2005. 
Programs to develop the social sphere, 
including the construction of housing, 
health care facilities, sports facilities 
and other social and cultural facili-
ties, were implemented jointly with 
local administrations. To improve living 
standards for its production staff, 
Rosneft built new rotational village 
housing and hostels, as well as made 

improvements to existing housing and 
acquired accommodation blocks for 
production teams. Funds were spent 
on maintaining social facilities, provid-
ing material incentives for employees, 
mortgage lending and supporting the 
professional growth of young special-
ists. Programs involving private pen-
sion plans for employees and support 
for war veterans were developed, and 
social and other additional payments 
were made to pensioners. Rosneft 
devoted considerable attention to 
charitable activities.

ENVIRONMENT
employees with medical equipment, 
personal protective equipment, ac-
cident insurance, and training and cer-
tification of employees in occupational 
and industrial safety skills. Measures 
were taken to reduce accident levels at 
hazardous production facilities, pre-
ventive maintenance was performed on 
process equipment and pipeline acces-
sories.
Measures were taken to ensure fire 
safety and maintain facilities’ fire units.

Consolidated Financial Statements 
Years ended December 31, 

2005, 2004 and 2003 
With Report 

of Independent Auditors 
ANNUAL REPORT
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REPORT 

OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS Report of Independent Auditors

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 
OJSC Rosneft Oil Company, an open joint stock company, and sub-
sidiaries (“the Company”) as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 
and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehen-
sive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the 
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based 
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform 
an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, and evaluating the overall consolidated finan-
cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, 
as of December 31, 2004 the Company was not in compliance with 
certain provisions of debt agreements, which constituted events 
of default, and as a result the related debt became callable by the 
respective creditors as of that date. Subsequently the Company has 
obtained waiver letters from the respective creditors which have 
provided for a grace period to cure these defaults and this grace pe-
riod was ultimately extended until December 31, 2006, which is not 
more than one year from the most recent balance sheet date. Based 

on the Company’s current strategy towards curing these matters, 
we do not believe that it is probable that all events of default will be 
cured before December 31, 2006. The Company continues to clas-
sify the related debt in the amount of US$ 2,803 million as non-cur-
rent, which is not in compliance with Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standard (SFAS) No. 78 “Classification of Obligations That 
Are Callable by the Creditor”, which requires classification of such 
debt as current.
 
As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the 
Company has not presented pro-forma results of operations for the 
years 2003 and 2004 as though its OJSC Yuganskneftegaz acquisi-
tion had been completed as of January 1, 2003. These disclosures 
are required by SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations”.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the 
value of property, plant and equipment pertaining to non-controlling 
shareholders in the accounting for minority interests resulting from 
acquisitions of OJSC YNG has been recorded at appraised values 
rather than at historical cost as required by SFAS No. 141 “Business 
Combinations”. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in 
the preceeding paragraphs, the consolidated financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli-
dated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2005, 
2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, 
effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 143 “Ac-
counting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” 

May 15, 2006

SHAREHOLDERS 
AND THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF OJSC ROSNEFT OIL COMPANY
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CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions of US dollars, except share amounts)

Notes
As of December 31,

2005 2004 2003

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,173 1,033 228

Restricted cash 5 23 25 7

Short-term investments 6 165 183 315

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
US$ 69, US$ 75 and US$ 62, respectively 7 2,858 4,799 753

Inventories 8 814 517 331

Deferred tax assets 24 48 28 23

Prepayments and other current assets 9 897 256 155

Total current assets 5,978 6,841 1,812

Non-current assets:
Long-term investments 10 436 277 181

Long-term bank loans granted, net of allowance of US$ 12, US$ 4 
and US$ 6, respectively 63 40 24

Oil and gas properties, net 11, 14 20,939 16,540 3,292

Property, plant and equipment, net 12, 14 2,030 1,758 1,063

Construction-in-progress 13 509 482 372

Goodwill 15 35 35 –

Deferred tax assets 24 8 5 20

Other non-current assets, net of allowance of US$ 2, US$ 0 
and US$ 0, respectively 16 18 34 4

Total non-current assets 24,038 19,171 4,956

Total assets 30,016 26,012 6,768

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17 1,358 1,386 670

Short-term loans and current portion of long-term debt 18 4,005 4,720 588

Income and other tax liabilities 20 2,810 1,560 131

Deferred tax liabilities 24 40 – 4

Other current liabilities 32 42 5

Total current liabilities 8,245 7,708 1,398

Asset retirement obligations 21 566 555 126

Long-term debt 18 8,198 9,022 1,820

Deferred tax liabilities 24 3,696 2,854 71

Other non-current liabilities 18 3 2

Total liabilities 20,723 20,142 3,417

Minority interest 22 1,860 2,535 789

Shareholder’s equity:
Common stock par value 0.01 RUR (shares issued and 
outstanding: 9,092,174,000 as of December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003) 

19 20 20 20

Additional paid-in capital 19 19 19 19

Accumulated other comprehensive income – – 13

Retained earnings 7,394 3,296 2,510

Total shareholder’s equity 7,433 3,335 2,562

Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity 30,016 26,012 6,768

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in millions of US dollars, except earnings per share data)

Notes
For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

REVENUES 

Oil and gas sales 27 16,202 2,735 1,714

Petroleum products and processing fees 27 7,374 2,233 1,724

Support services and other revenues 375 307 203

Total 23,951 5,275 3,641

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Production and operating expenses 1,623 608 442

Cost of purchased oil and petroleum products 732 547 368

Selling, general and administrative expenses 663 269 305

Pipeline tariffs and transportation costs 2,164 562 452

Exploration expenses 194 51 18

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,472 307 302

Accretion expense 35 8 12

Taxes other than income tax 24 5,264 957 642

Excise tax and export customs duty 23 6,281 760 436

Total 18,428 4,069 2,977

Operating income 5,523 1,206 664

OTHER INCOME / (EXPENSES)

Interest income 81 65 73

Interest expense (775) (159) (110)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (74) 121 (21)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of investments (13) (30) 5

Gain on disposal of share in CJSC Sevmorneftegaz 10 1,303 – –

Equity share in affiliates’ profits 10 51 52 –

Dividends and income from joint ventures 10 46 16

Other expenses, net (137) (196) (101)

Foreign exchange gain 245 96 63

Total other income/(expenses) 691 (5) (75)

Income before income tax and minority interest 6,214 1,201 589

Income tax expense 24 (1,609) (298) (201)

Income before minority interest 4,605 903 388

Minority interest in subsidiaries’ earnings 22 (446) (66) (52)

Net income before cumulative effect from change in accounting principle 4,159 837 336

Cumulative effect from change in accounting principle, net of income tax − − 50

Net income 4,159 837 386

Other comprehensive income 2 − − 13

Comprehensive income 4,159 837 399

Earnings per share (in US$) – basic and diluted 0.46 0.09 0.04

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 
(in thousands) 19 9,092,174 9,092,174 9,092,174

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 
OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003
(in millions of US dollars)

Common 
stock 

Additional 
paid-in 
capital

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Retained 
earnings

Shareholder’s 
equity

Balance at December 31, 
2002 20 – – 2,173 2,193

Share issue and premium – 19 – – 19

Unrealised gains on available-
for-sale securities – – 13 – 13

Net income for the year – – – 386 386

Dividends declared on 
common stock – – – (49) (49)

Balance at December 31, 
2003 20 19 13 2,510 2,562

Realized gains on available-for-
sale securities – – (13) – (13)

Net income for the year – – – 837 837

Dividends declared on 
common stock – – – (51) (51)

Balance at December 31, 
2004 20 19 – 3,296 3,335

Net income for the year – – – 4,159 4,159

Dividends declared on 
common stock – – – (61) (61)

Balance at December 31, 
2005 20 19 – 7,394 7,433

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions of US dollars)

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net income 4,159 837 386

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents and deferred tax (115) (24) (16)

Gain on disposal of share in CJSC Sevmorneftegaz (Note 10) (1,303) – –

Cumulative effect from change in accounting principle, net of income tax – – (50)

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,472 307 302

Dry well expenses 17 7 –

Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 74 (121) 21

Deferred income tax (79) (11) (43)

Accretion expense 35 8 12

Equity share in affiliates’ profits (51) (52) –

Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts and bank loans granted 4 11 27

Minority interests in subsidiaries’ earnings 446 66 52

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of acquisitions:

Decrease / (increase) in restricted cash 2 (4) –

Increase in accounts receivable (1,353) (146) (114)

Increase in inventories (297) (92) (56)

(Increase) / decrease in prepayments and other current assets (641) (100) 42

Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 16 (26) (3)

Increase in long-term bank loans granted (23) (16) (13)

(Decrease) / increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (28) (44) 169

Increase in income and other tax liabilities 414 34 53

Increase in interest payable 158 35 18

Increase in other current and non-current liabilities 5 38 7

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,912 707 794

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Capital expenditures (2,085) (853) (821)

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 30 206 6

Acquisition of short-term investments (693) (88) (614)

Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 707 253 449

Acquisition of entities and additional shares in subsidiaries (366) (270) (728)

Acquisition of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz – (9,398) –

Proceeds from sale of long-term investments 147 248 463

Acquisition of long-term investments (33) (267) (315)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,293) (10,169) (1,560)

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(continued) 
(in millions of US dollars)

For the years ended 
December 31,

2005 2004 2003

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from short-term debt 977 3,211 548

Repayment of short-term debt (2,018) (132) (588)

Proceeds from long-term debt 2,547 8,092 1,043

Repayment of long-term debt (1,829) (867) (228)

Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries (74) (10) (19)

Common dividends paid (61) (51) (49)

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (458) 10,243 707

Increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 161 781 (59)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,033 228 271

Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents (21) 24 16

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,173 1,033 228

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for interest (net of amount capitalized) 617 124 92

Cash paid for income taxes 1,636 309 199

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES

Income tax offsets 41 6 49

Non-cash capital expenditures (32) (50) (61)

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 
TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE STATEMENTS

GENERAL (1) 
NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Open Joint Stock Company 
(“OJSC”) Rosneft Oil Company 
(“Rosneft”) and its subsidiar-
ies, (collectively the “Company” 
or the “Group”), are principally 
engaged in exploration, devel-
opment, production and sale 
of crude oil and gas and refin-
ing, transportation and sale of 
petroleum products in the Rus-
sian Federation (“RF”) and in 
certain international markets.
Rosneft State Enterprise was 
incorporated as an open joint 
stock company on December 7, 
1995. All assets and liabilities 
previously managed by Rosneft 
State Enterprise were trans-
ferred to the Company at their 
book value effective on that 
date together with the Gov-
ernment of the RF (“State”) 
ownership in other privatized 
oil and gas companies. The 
transfer of assets and li-
abilities was made in accord-
ance with Resolution No. 971, 

“On the Transformation of 
Rosneft State Enterprise into 
an Open Joint Stock Company 

“Rosneft Oil Company”, dated 
September 29, 1995. Such 
transfers represented a reor-
ganization of assets under the 
common control of the State 
and, accordingly, were ac-
counted for at their book value. 

As of December 31, 2004 and 
2003, the State maintained 
a 100% interest in Rosneft. In 
2005, the shares of Rosneft 
were contributed to the share 
capital of OJSC Rosneftegaz 
(see Note 19). As of December 
31, 2005, 100% of the shares 
of Rosneft less one share were 
owned by OJSC Rosneftegaz 
and one share was owned by 
the RF Federal Agency for 
the Management of Federal 
Property.
Under Russian legislation, 
natural resources, including 
oil, gas, precious metals and 
minerals and other commer-
cial minerals situated within 
the territory of the RF are the 
property of the State until 
they are extracted. The Law of 
the RF No. 2395-1, On Sub-
surface Resources, regulates 
relations arising in connection 
with the geological study, use 
and protection of subsurface 
resources within the territory 
of the RF. Pursuant to the Law, 
subsurface resources may be 
developed only on the basis of 
a licence. The licence is issued 
by the regional governmental 
body and contains information 
on the site to be developed, the 
period of activity, financial and 
other conditions. The Company 
holds several licences issued 
by regional authorities for the 
geological study and develop-
ment of oil and gas blocks and 

fields in areas where its sub-
sidiaries are located.
In addition, the Company 
participates in a number of 
production sharing agree-
ments (PSAs). As a result, 
the Company has rights 
to develop certain licence 
blocks according to the ex-
isting PSAs and may receive 
similar rights in the future 
(see Note 11).
Due to the limited capacity 
of OJSC Transneft’s pipeline 
system, the State Pipeline 
Commission sets export 
quotas for each oil com-
pany based on the legislation 
on equal access to the oil 
pipeline system. In addi-
tion, the Company exports 
certain quantities of crude 
oil bypassing the Transneft 
system thus enabling it to 
increase its export capacities. 
In 2005, 2004 and 2003 
the Company’s export sales 
were approximately 62%, 
57% and 51% of production, 
respectively. The remaining 
production was processed at 
the Company’s refineries and 
other Russian refineries for 
further sales on domestic and 
international markets. Gen-
erally, export sales result in a 
higher net realized price than 
Russian domestic sales after 
considering related transpor-
tation and export duties and 
other charges.

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements
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General General

Principal subsidiary companies in-
cluded in the consolidated financial 
statements and respective ownership 
interests of the Company as of Decem-
ber 31, 2005 are as follows:

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

CURRENCY EXCHANGE 
AND CONTROL 

Foreign currencies, in particu-
lar the US dollar and the Euro, 
play a significant role in the 
underlying economics of many 
business transactions in Rus-
sia. For the oil and gas sector in 
particular, substantial export 

arrangements as well as in-
vesting and financing activities 
are conducted in foreign cur-
rencies, primarily the US dollar. 
The Russian Federation has 
established currency regula-
tion rules designed to stimu-
late use of the ruble in busi-
ness operations. Such rules 
allow the Central Bank of 

Russia (the “CBR”) to place 
restrictions on the conversion 
of rubles into foreign cur-
rencies and retain the CBR’s 
powers to independently 
impose the quota of foreign 
currency to be converted into 
rubles. In March 2006, man-
datory conversion of foreign 
currency was abolished.

Name Nature of Business 

Preferred 
and 

Common 
Shares

Voting 
Shares

 % %

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

OJSC Yuganskneftegaz (Note 22) Oil and gas development and production 76.79 100.00

OJSC Rosneft-Purneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 83.09 90.82

OJSC Rosneft-Sakhalinmorneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 64.62 84.63

OJSC Rosneft-Krasnodarneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 95.46 97.91

OJSC Rosneft-Stavropolneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 75.18 89.33

OJSC Rosneft-Dagneft Oil and gas development and production 68.70 91.60

OJSC Grozneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 51.00 51.00

OJSC Rosneft-Sakhalin Field survey and exploration 55.00 55.00

OJSC Severnaya Neft (Northern Oil) Oil and gas development and production 100.00 100.00

OJSC Selkupneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 100.00 100.00

Caspoil LLC Oil and gas development and production 75.10 75.10

CJSC Vostokshelf Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

RN-Kazakhstan LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

OJSC Dagneftegaz Oil and gas development and production 81.22 94.96

RN-Kaiganneftegaz LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

CJSC Vostok-Smidt Neftegaz Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

CJSC Zapad-Smidt Neftegaz Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Vostok Smidt Invest LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Zapad Smidt Invest LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Komsomolskoye NGDU LLC Oil and gas development and production 100.00 100.00

West Kamchatka Holding B.V. Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Veninneft LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Kamchatneftegaz LLC Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

CJSC Vankorneft Field survey and exploration 100.00 100.00

Taymyrneft LLC Field survey and exploration 60.00 60.00

Eniseineft LLC Field survey and exploration 99.00 99.00

REFINING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION 

OJSC Rosneft-Tuapse Refinery Petroleum refining 81.23 90.62

OJSC Rosneft-Komsomolsky Refinery Petroleum refining 79.98 86.86

OJSC Rosneft-MZ Nefteproduct Petroleum refining 65.42 87.23

Name Nature of Business 

Preferred 
and 

Common 
Shares

Voting 
Shares

REFINING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION (CONTINUED)

OJSC Rosneft-ARTAG Marketing and distribution 38.00 50.67

OJSC Rosneft-Altainefteproduct Marketing and distribution 64.18 78.59

OJSC Rosneft-Arkhangelsknefteproduct Marketing and distribution 75.42 84.65

OJSC Rosneft-Kabardino-Balkarskaya Toplivnaya Company Marketing and distribution 88.66 92.91

OJSC Rosneft-Kubannefteproduct Marketing and distribution 89.50 96.61

OJSC Rosneft-Karachaevo-Cherkessknefteproduct Marketing and distribution 85.99 87.46

OJSC Rosneft-Kurgannefteproduct Marketing and distribution 83.32 90.33

OJSC Rosneft-Murmansknefteproduct Marketing and distribution 45.38 60.51

OJSC Rosneft-Nakhodkanefteproduct Marketing and distribution 40.62 51.53

OJSC Rosneft-Smolensknefteproduct Marketing and distribution 66.67 86.97

OJSC Rosneft-Tuapsenefteproduct Marketing and distribution 38.00 50.67

OJSC Rosneft-Yamalnefteproduct Marketing and distribution 49.52 66.03

RN-Vostoknefteproduct LLC Marketing and distribution 100.00 100.00

OJSC Rosneft-Stavropolye Marketing and distribution 99.08 99.08

RN-Trade LLC Marketing and distribution 100.00 100.00

OTHER

Rosneft International Limited Holding company 100.00 100.00

CJSC Rosnefteflot Transportation services 82.66 82.66

OJSC All-Russian Bank for Reconstruction and Development of 
Russian Regions (VBRR) Banking 50.98 50.98

CJSC RN-Astra Investment activities 100.00 100.00

CJSC Sakhalinskie Proekty Corporate planning 100.00 100.00

CJSC Vostochny Neftenalivnoy Terminal Services 100.00 100.00

Baikalfinancegroup LLC Investment activities 100.00 100.00

All of the above subsidiaries, except for Rosneft International Ltd. and West Kamchatka Holding B.V., are 
incorporated in the RF. Rosneft International Ltd. is registered in Ireland, West Kamchatka Holding B.V. is 
registered in the Netherlands.
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SUMMARY 
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (2) 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

FORMAT AND CONTENT 
OF CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company maintains its books and 
records in accordance with account-
ing and taxation principles and prac-
tices mandated by Russian legislation. 
The accompanying consolidated finan-
cial statements were derived from the 
Company’s Russian statutory books 
and records with adjustments and re-
classifications made to present them 
in accordance with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United 
States of America (“US GAAP”).
The accompanying consolidated finan-
cial statements differ from the finan-
cial statements issued for statutory 
purposes in Russia in that they reflect 
certain adjustments, not recorded in 
the Company’s statutory books, which 
are appropriate to present the finan-
cial position, results of operations 
and cash flows in accordance with 
US GAAP. The principal adjustments 
relate to: 
(1) recognition of certain expenses; 
(2) valuation and depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment; (3) 
foreign currency translation; (4) 
deferred income taxes; (5) valuation 
allowances for unrecoverable assets; 
(6) accounting for the time value of 
money; (7) accounting for investments 
in oil and gas property and convey-
ances; (8) consolidation principles; (9) 
recognition and disclosure of guaran-
tees, contingencies, commitments and 
certain assets and liabilities; (10) ac-
counting for asset retirement obliga-
tions; (11) business combinations and 
goodwill/negative goodwill.

Certain amounts in the 2003 and 
2004 consolidated financial state-
ments were reclassified to conform to 
the current year presentation.
As discussed in Note 4, on Decem-
ber 31, 2004 the Company acquired 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. Accordingly, 

the results of OJSC Yugansnefte-
gaz operations were included in the 
Company’s consolidated statement of 
income from January 1, 2005. Conse-
quently, the results of the Company’s 
operations in 2005, 2004 and 2003 
are not comparable without consid-
ering this matter in 2005. Revenue 
from sales of crude oil and refined 
products related to OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz in 2005 accounts for ap-
proximately 69% of the consolidated 
revenue of the Company. 

MANAGEMENT 
ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the financial 
statements in conformity with US 
GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the bal-
ance sheet as well as the amounts of 
revenues and expenses recognized 
during the reporting periods. Cer-
tain significant estimates and as-
sumptions for the Company include: 
estimation of economically recover-
able oil and gas reserves; rights to 
and recoverability and useful lives of 
long-term assets and investments; 
impairment of goodwill; allowances 
for doubtful accounts receivable; 
asset retirement obligations; legal 
and tax contingencies; environmental 
remediation obligations; recogni-
tion and disclosure of guarantees 
and other commitments; fair value 
measurements; ability to renew op-
erating leases and to enter into new 
lease agreements; classification of 
certain debt amounts. Some of the 
most significant estimates are made 
in connection with the acquisition 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. Manage-
ment believes it has a reasonable and 
appropriate basis for its judgment 
pertaining to its estimates and as-
sumptions. However, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

PRINCIPLES 
OF CONSOLIDATION 

The consolidated statements 
include business transactions 
of the subsidiaries in which the 
Company directly or indirectly 
owns more than 50% of com-
mon voting stock, or on which 
it otherwise exercises control. 
All intercompany transactions 
and balances have been elimi-
nated. Investments in other 
significant entities in which 
the Company owns between 
20% and 50% are generally 
accounted for under the equity 
method since the Company 
does not have absolute control, 
but rather significant influ-
ence. Investments in other 
companies are accounted for 
at cost and adjusted for any 
estimated impairment. 
The Company analyzed the 
application of Financial Ac-
counting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) Interpretation 
(“FIN”) 46R, Consolidation 
of Variable-Interest Entities 
(VIEs), for potential consoli-
dation of companies. FIN 46R 
was applied from January 1, 
2004 for VIEs created after 
December 31, 2003, and from 
January 1, 2005, for all other 
VIEs. As discussed in Note 3, 
the application of FIN 46R did 
not have a significant impact 
on the Company’s operations 
and financial position. 

MINORITY 
INTEREST 

Minority interests in the 
net assets and net results 
of consolidated subsidiaries 
are shown under “Minority 
interest” in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets 

and statements of income and 
comprehensive income. For 
majority-owned subsidiaries 
that incur losses, the Company 
recognizes 100% of the losses, 
after first reducing the related 
minority interests’ balances to 
zero, unless minority share-
holders committed to fund the 
losses. Further, when a major-
ity-owned subsidiary becomes 
profitable, the Company rec-
ognizes 100% of profits until 
such time as the excess losses 
previously recorded have been 
recovered. Thereafter, the 
Company recognizes profits in 
accordance with the underly-
ing ownership percentage. The 
actual ruble-denominated bal-
ances attributable to minor-
ity interests may differ from 
these amounts presented in 
these consolidated financial 
statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY 
TRANSLATION 

The management of the Com-
pany has determined the US 
Dollar as the functional and 
reporting currency for the 
purpose of financial reporting 
under US GAAP.
Monetary assets and liabili-
ties have been translated into 
US dollars using the ex-
change rate as of the balance 
sheet date. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities have 
been translated at historical 
rates. Revenues, expenses 
and cash flows are translated 
into US dollars at average 
exchange rates prevailing on 
transaction dates. Gains and 
losses resulting from the re-
measurement into US dollars 
are included in the “Foreign 
exchange gain” in the consoli-

dated statement of income.
As of December 31, 2005, 
2004 and 2003, the official 
CBR rates of exchange were 
28.78 rubles, 27.75 rubles and 
29.45 rubles per US dollar, re-
spectively. As of May 15, 2006 
the official rate of exchange 
was 26.94 rubles per US dollar.
The translation of local cur-
rency denominated assets 
and liabilities into US dollars 
for the purposes of these 
financial statements does not 
indicate that the Company 
could realize or settle, in U.S. 
dollars, the reported values 
of these assets and liabilities. 
Likewise, it does not indicate 
that the Company could re-
turn or distribute the report-
ed US dollar value of capital to 
its shareholders.

CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash represents cash on hand 
and in the Company’s bank 
accounts and interest bearing 
deposits which can be effec-
tively withdrawn at any time 
without prior notice or pen-
alties reducing the principal 
amount of the deposit.

ACCOUNTS 
RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable 
are stated at their principal 
amounts outstanding net 
of allowances for doubtful 
debts. Specific allowances 
are recorded against trade 
receivables whose recovery or 
collection has been identified 
as doubtful. Estimates of al-
lowances require the exercise 
of judgment and the use of 
assumptions.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic earnings per share is calculated 
by dividing net earnings attributable 
to common shares by the weighted 
average number of common shares 
outstanding during the corresponding 
period. In the absence of any securi-
ties-to-shares conversion transac-
tions, the amount of basic earnings 
per share stated in these financial 
statements is equal to the amount of 
diluted earnings per share. 

INVENTORIES

Inventories, consisting primarily of 
crude oil, petroleum products and 
materials and supplies, are stated at 
the lower of weighted average cost of 
acquisition or market value. Market 
value shall not exceed net realizable 
value (i.e. the price at which invento-
ries can be sold after allowing for the 
cost of completion and sale), and shall 
not be lower than net realizable values 
less the amount of margin. 

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

All debt and equity securities held by 
the Company are classified into one of 
the following three categories: trading 
securities; available-for-sale securi-
ties; held-to-maturity securities.
Trading securities are purchased and 
held principally for the purpose of sale 
in the nearest future. Held-to-ma-
turity securities represent financial 
instruments that the Company has 
both the intent and the ability to hold 
to maturity. All other securities, which 
do not fall into these two categories 
are classified as available-for-sale 
securities. 
Trading securities and available-for-
sale securities are carried at fair 
(market) value. Held-to-maturity se-
curities are stated at amortized cost. 

Unrealized gains or losses on trading 
securities are included in the consoli-
dated statements of income. Unreal-
ized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities less related tax effects 
are recorded as a separate compo-
nent of comprehensive income until 
the date of disposal. 
Realized gains and losses from the 
sale of available-for-sale securities 
are reported separately for each type 
of security. Dividends and interest 
income are recognized in the con-
solidated statements of income on an 
accrual basis.
Investments in shares or interests of 
companies where the Company has 
less than 20% equity interest and no 
significant influence, which are not 
publicly traded and whose market 
value is not readily available are car-
ried at cost.
If the decline in fair value of an in-
vestment below its carrying value is 
other than temporary, the carrying 
value of the investment is reduced 
and a loss in the amount of any such 
decline is recorded. Cost method 
investments are evaluated for im-
pairment when events or changes in 
circumstances occur which may have 
a significant effect on the fair value 
of these investments.

SALE AND REPURCHASE 
AGREEMENTS 
AND SECURITIES LENDING 

Sale and repurchase agreements are 
treated as secured financing transac-
tions. Securities sold under sale and 
repurchase agreements are included 
in trading securities. The correspond-
ing liability is presented within short-
term debt. The difference between the 
sale and repurchase price is treated 
as interest and is accrued over the life 
of repurchased agreements using the 
effective interest method.

OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES 

In accordance with State-
ment of Financial Accounting 
Standard (“SFAS 19”), Finan-
cial Accounting and Report-
ing by Oil and Gas Producing 
Companies (SFAS 19), oil and 
gas properties and the related 
expenses are recognized under 
the successful efforts method. 
This method prescribes that 
exploration costs, including 
geological and geophysical 
costs and the costs of dry 
holes, are charged to expense 
when incurred. 
In April 2005, FASB issued 
FASB Staff Position FSP FAS 
19-1, Accounting for suspend-
ed well costs (“FSP FAS 19-1”), 
which amends SFAS 19. 
FSP FAS 19-1 provides for 
continued capitalization of 
exploratory drilling costs 
past one year if a company is 
making sufficient progress on 
assessing the reserves and 
the economic and operating vi-
ability of the project. FSP FAS 
19-1 also provides certain dis-
closure requirements with re-
spect to capitalized explorato-
ry drilling costs. As of January 
1, 2005 the Company adopted 
FSP FAS 19-1.Exploratory well 
costs (including costs associ-
ated with stratigraphic test 
wells) are temporarily capital-
ized pending determination of 
whether potentially economic 
oil and gas reserves have been 
discovered by the drilling ef-
fort. The length of time neces-
sary for this determination 
depends on the specific techni-

cal or economic difficulties in 
assessing the recoverability of 
the reserves. If a determina-
tion is made that the well did 
not encounter oil and gas in 
economically viable quantities, 
the well costs are expensed 
and are reported in “explora-
tion expenses”.

Exploratory drilling costs are 
temporarily capitalized pend-
ing determination of whether 
the well has found proved re-
serves if both of the following 
conditions are met: 

 The well has found a suf-
ficient quantity of reserves 
to justify, if appropriate, its 
completion as a produc-
ing well, assuming that the 
required capital expenditure 
is made;  

 Satisfactory progress 
toward ultimate develop-
ment of the reserves is being 
achieved, with the Company 
making sufficient progress 
assessing the reserves and 
the economic and operating 
viability of the project. 

The Company evaluates the 
progress made on the basis of 
regular project reviews which 
take into account the following 
factors: 
 
 First, if additional explora-
tory drilling or other ex-
ploratory activities (such as 
seismic work or other sig-
nificant studies) are either 
underway or firmly planned, 
the Company deems there 

to be satisfactory progress. 
For these purposes, explora-
tory activities are considered 
firmly planned only if they are 
included in the Company’s 
three-year exploration plan/
budget. At December 31, 
2005, exploratory drilling 
costs capitalized on this ba-
sis were not material.

 In cases where exploratory 
activity has been completed, 
the evaluation of satisfactory 
progress takes into account 
indicators such as the fact 
that costs for develop-
ment studies are incurred in 
the current period, or that 
governmental or other third-
party authorizations are 
pending or that the availabil-
ity of capacity on an exist-
ing transport or processing 
facility awaits confirma-
tion. At December 31, 2005, 
exploratory drilling costs 
capitalized on this basis were 
not material.

Should the project be deemed 
economically viable, it is then 
transferred to the develop-
ment stage, otherwise the 
costs are expensed.
Costs, including “internal” 
costs relating to drilling and 
equipping of development 
wells, including development 
dry holes, as well as costs 
required for drilling and equip-
ping of injection wells in the 
process of oil and gas reserves 
development, are capitalized. 
These costs are included in oil 
and gas properties in the con-
solidated balance sheet.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are 
stated at historical cost, net of ac-
cumulated depreciation. The cost of 
maintenance, repairs, and replace-
ment of minor items of property is 
charged to operating expenses. Re-
newals and betterments of assets are 
capitalized. 
Upon sale or retirement of property, 
plant and equipment, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation are 
eliminated from the accounts. Any 
resulting gains or losses are included 
in the statement of income.

DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION 
AND AMORTIZATION

Depletion expense of acquisition costs 
of proved oil and gas properties is 
calculated using the unit-of-produc-
tion method based on total proved 
reserves. Depletion expense of other 

capitalized costs related to oil and gas 
production is calculated using the unit-
of production method based on proved 
developed reserves. Management of 
the Company considers each extrac-
tion division as the appropriate level 
for these calculations.
Acquisition costs of unproved proper-
ties are not amortized. These costs 
are reclassified as proved properties 
when the relevant reserve reclas-
sification is made. Acquisition costs 
of unproved properties are reviewed 
for impairment. In case of impair-
ment these costs are expensed when 
incurred. 
Depreciation and amortization charg-
es with respect to property, plant 
and equipment other than oil and gas 
properties is computed using the 
straight-line method and based on 
their useful lives.
Depreciation rates are applied to 
similar types of buildings, machinery 
and equipment having similar econom-
ic characteristics, as shown below:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

ASSET GROUP AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE

Buildings and constructions 30-35 years

Plant and machinery 15 years

Vehicles and other equipment 6 years

Service vessels 20 years

Offshore drilling assets 20 years

INTERESTS 
IN JOINT OPERATIONS 

A joint operation is a contrac-
tual arrangement whereby two 
or more parties (participants) 
undertake an economic activ-
ity that is subject to joint con-
trol. Joint control is only exer-
cised when strategic, financial 
and operating decisions relat-
ing to the joint activity are 
made unanimously by all the 
parties. A joint venture is as a 
registered company, partner-
ship or any other legal form for 
the purposes of handling joint 
operations.
Financial results, assets 
and liabilities arising from 
interests in joint ventures 
are recognized in these con-
solidated financial statements 
using the equity method of 
accounting. Under the equity 
method, investments in joint 
ventures are recognized at the 
cost of financial investments 
increased by any change to the 
share of net assets from the 
date of inception of a joint ven-
ture, less distributed earnings 
and impairment of financial 
investments. The consolidated 
statements of income include 
the Company’s share in gains 
and losses arising from joint 
ventures. 
The Company discontinues the 
use of the equity method of 
accounting from the date on 
which it ceases to have joint 
control over, or have sig-
nificant influence in, a jointly-
controlled entity, or when its 
interest in a jointly-controlled 
entity is reclassified to assets 
held for sale.Certain activities 
of the Company (mainly oil ex-
ploration and production) are 
conducted through interests 

in joint projects, where the 
parties exercise joint control 
over the assets without a 
legal entity being established. 
Income, expenses, assets and 
liabilities arising from par-
ticipation in joint projects are 
included in the consolidated 
financial statements on a pro 
rata basis corresponding to 
the participation share.
A part of an interest in a 
jointly-controlled oil and gas 
exploration and production en-
tity may be assigned to other 
participants or third parties. 
In which case, in accordance 
with SFAS 19, Financial Ac-
counting and Reporting by Oil 
and Gas Producing Companies, 
such assignment is performed 
and accounted for under an 
arrangement called a “car-
ried interest” whereby the 
assignee agrees to carry all 
costs of drilling, developing, 
and operating the property. 
The assignee is also entitled to 
all of the revenue from hydro-
carbon production from the 
property, excluding any third 
party interest, until all of the 
assignee’s costs, including 
the contractual rate of return, 
have been recovered, at such 
time the assignor will resume 
its participation in operating 
expenses and income. 

IMPAIRMENT 
OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-lived assets, including 
blocks with proved oil and gas 
reserves, are assessed for 
potential impairment in ac-
cordance with SFAS 144, Ac-
counting for the Impairment or 
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. 
Oil and gas properties are 
assessed whenever events 

or circumstances indicate po-
tential impairment. 
If the carrying value of oil and 
gas properties is not recover-
able through undiscounted 
cash flows, an impairment is 
recognized. The impairment is 
determined on the basis of the 
estimated fair value of oil and 
gas properties which, in turn, 
is measured by discounting 
future net cash flows or with 
reference to current market 
prices of oil and gas properties, 
if available. Discounted future 
cash flows from oil and gas 
fields are based on the most 
reliable management estimates 
of future prices that rely on 
recent actual prices and pub-
lished prices for forward trans-
actions; such prices are applied 
to forecast production volumes 
at particular fields with further 
discounting for the expected 
risk level. Forecast production 
volumes shall be understood 
as reserves, including probable 
reserves that are proposed 
to be extracted using a known 
amount of capital expenditures. 
Production volumes and prices 
correspond to the internal 
plans and forecasts, as well 
as other data in the published 
financial statements. Assump-
tions regarding future prices 
and costs used to assess oil 
and gas properties for impair-
ment differ from those used 
in the standard procedure for 
discounting net cash flows 
from proved oil and gas re-
serves. In accordance with 
SFAS 69, Disclosures about 
Oil and Gas Producing Activi-
ties, such disclosures should 
be based on assumptions that 
use prices and expenses as of 
the balance sheet date without 
forecasting future changes.
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Grouping of assets for the purpose of 
depreciation is performed on the basis 
of the lowest level of identifiable cash 
flows that are largely independent of 
the cash flows from other groups of 
assets – as a rule, for oil and gas prop-
erties such level is represented by the 
field, for refining assets – by the whole 
refining unit, for service stations – by 
the facilities. Long-lived assets in-
tended by management for use during 
a period not exceeding one year are 
recorded at the lower of depreciated 
value or fair value, less selling expenses. 
Acquisition costs of unproved oil 
and gas properties are assessed for 
impairment on a regular basis and any 
estimated impairment is charged to 
expenses.
Recoverability of oil and gas prop-
erties attributable to the refining, 
marketing and distribution segment 
is generally assessed on the basis of 
expected future cash flows from key 
operating units, usually entire legal 
entities. Since assets of this segment 
(particularly refining units) repre-
sent an integrated set of operations, 
this condition is taken into account 
in measuring the value of particular 
units or the extent of their utilization 
to generate other cash flows.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Company accounts for its busi-
ness acquisitions under the purchase 
method of accounting. The total cost of 
acquisitions is allocated to the underly-
ing assets, including intangible assets, 
and liabilities based on their respective 
estimated fair values. Determining the 
fair value of assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed requires management’s 
judgment and often involves the use of 
significant estimates and assumptions, 
including assumptions with respect 
to future cash inflows and outflows, 
discount rates, licence and other as-
set lives and market multiples, among 
other items.

As discussed further in Note 4, the 
Company’s December 2004 acquisi-
tion of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz re-
sulted in the fair value of the under-
lying net assets acquired exceeding 
the purchase price and thus resulted 
in negative goodwill. The negative 
goodwill reduced, on a pro rata basis, 
amounts assigned to the acquired non-
current assets.

GOODWILL AND OTHER 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill represents the excess of the 
acquisition cost over the fair value of 
net assets acquired. The excess of the 
fair value of the acquired share of net 
assets over their acquisition cost rep-
resents negative goodwill and is allo-
cated among the non-current assets 
acquired, excluding investments and 
deferred tax assets, which may result 
in their value being reduced to zero.
For investees accounted for under 
the equity method, the excess of the 
cost to acquire a share in those enti-
ties over the fair value of the acquired 
share of net assets as of the acqui-
sition date is treated as embedded 
goodwill and is considered in comput-
ing the Company’s equity share in 
income/loss of equity investees.
In accordance with requirements of 
SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangi-
ble Assets, goodwill and intangible as-
sets with indefinite useful lives are not 
amortized. Instead, they are tested at 
least annually for impairment.
Intangible assets that have a finite 
useful life are amortized using the 
straight-line method over the shorter 
of their useful life or the term estab-
lished by legislation.

CAPITALIZED INTEREST

Interest expense related to the use 
of borrowed funds used for capital 
construction projects and acquisition 
of properties, plant and equipment 

is capitalized provided such in-
terest expense could have been 
avoided if the Company had 
not made capital investments. 
Interest is capitalized only dur-
ing the period when construc-
tion activities are actually in 
progress and until the resulting 
properties are put into opera-
tion. The Company capitalized 
US$ 79 million, US$ 22 million 
and US$ 34 million of interest 
expenses on loans and borrow-
ings in 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively.

LEASING AGREEMENTS

Capital leases, which trans-
fer to the Company substan-
tially all the risks and benefits 
incidental to ownership of the 
leased item, are capitalized at 
the inception of the lease at the 
fair value of the leased prop-
erty or, if lower, at the present 
value of the minimum lease 
payments. Lease payments 
are apportioned between the 
interest charges and reduc-
tion of the lease liability so as 
to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining bal-
ance of the liabilities. Interest 
charges are charged directly to 
the consolidated statements of 
operation and comprehensive 
income.
Capitalized leased assets are 
depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of 
the asset or the lease term 
unless leased assets are 
capitalized because the terms 
of the lease agreement grant 
the Company ownership rights 
over the leased assets by the 
end of the lease term or con-
taining a bargain purchase op-
tion. In the latter cases capi-
talized assets are depreciated 

over the estimated useful life 
of the asset regardless of the 
lease term.
Leases where the lessor re-
tains substantially all the risks 
and benefits of ownership of 
the assets are classified as 
operating leases. Operating 
lease payments are recognized 
as an expense in the consoli-
dated statements of operation 
and comprehensive income on 
a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

ASSET 
RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company has conditional 
asset retirement obligations 
associated with its core busi-
ness activities. The nature of 
the assets and potential obli-
gations are as follows:

EXPLORATION AND PRO-
DUCTION – The Company’s 
exploration, development and 
production activities involve 
the use of the following assets: 
wells, related equipment and 
operating sites, oil gathering 
and treatment facilities, tank 
farms and in-field pipelines. 
Generally, licences and other 
regulatory acts require that 
such assets be decommis-
sioned upon the completion of 
production. According to these 
requirements, the Company is 
obliged to decommission wells, 
dismantle equipment, restore 
the sites and perform other re-
lated activities. The Company’s 
estimates of these obligations 
are based on current regula-
tory or licence requirements, 
as well as actual dismantling 
and other related costs. Asset 
retirement obligations are cal-
culated in accordance with the 

provisions of SFAS 143, Ac-
counting for Asset Retirement 
Obligations.

REFINING, MARKETING AND 
DISTRIBUTION – This business 
segment covers refining opera-
tions, marine and other dis-
tribution terminals, and retail 
sales. The Company’s refining 
operations consist of major 
petrochemical operations and 
industrial complexes. These 
industrial complexes have been 
in operation for several dec-
ades. The Company’s manage-
ment believes that given the 
nature of the operations, the 
useful lives of these industrial 
complexes are indeterminable, 
while certain of their operat-
ing components and equipment 
have definite useful lives. Legal 
or contractual asset retire-
ment obligations related to 
petrochemical, oil refining, 
marketing and distribution ac-
tivities are not recognized due 
to the limited history of such 
activities in these segments, 
the lack of clear legal require-
ments as to the recognition of 
obligations, as well as the fact 
that useful lives of such assets 
are not determinable.
The Company’s marine and 
other distribution terminals, 
including its retail network, 
operate under the regulatory 
requirements of local authori-
ties and lease arrangements. 
These requirements generally 
provide for elimination of the 
consequences of the use of 
those assets, including dis-
mantling of equipment, resto-
ration of land, etc. The Com-
pany’s estimate of conditional 
asset retirement obligations 
takes into account the above 
requirements. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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SFAS 143 calls for measurements 
of asset retirement obligations to 
include, as a component of expected 
costs, an estimate of the price that a 
third party would demand, and could 
expect to receive, for bearing the un-
certainties and unforeseeable circum-
stances inherent in the obligations, 
sometimes referred to as a market-
risk premium. 
To date, the oil and gas industry has 
few examples of credit-worthy third 
parties which are willing to assume 
this type of risk, for a determinable 
price, on major oil and gas produc-
tion facilities and pipelines. Therefore, 
because determining such a market-
risk premium would be an arbitrary 
process, it has been excluded from the 
SFAS 143 estimates.
Due to continuous changes in the 
Russian regulatory and legal environ-
ment, there could be future changes 
to the requirements and contingen-
cies associated with the retirement of 
long-lived assets.

FAIR VALUE 
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS 107, Disclosures about Fair 
Value of Financial Instruments, defines 
the fair value of a financial instrument 
as the amount at which the instru-
ment could be exchanged in a current 
transaction between willing parties, 
other than in a forced or liquidation 
sale.
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
recognized in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheets include cash 
and cash equivalents, short-term and 
long-term investments, accounts re-
ceivable and payable, short-term debt 
and other current and non-current 
assets and liabilities. The accounting 
policies with respect to the recogni-
tion and measurement of these items 
are disclosed in the respective ac-
counting policies in Note 28.
The Company, using available market 

information, management’s estimates 
and appropriate valuation methodolo-
gies, has determined the approximate 
fair values of financial instruments.

INCOME TAXES

Russian legislation does not contain 
the concept of a ‘consolidated tax 
payer’ and, accordingly, the Company 
is not subject to Russian taxation on 
a consolidated basis but rather on 
an individual company basis. Income 
taxes are provided on taxable profit as 
determined under the Russian Federa-
tion Tax Code. Deferred income tax 
assets and liabilities are recognized 
in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements in the amount 
determined by the Company using the 
liability method in accordance with 
SFAS 109, Accounting for Income 
Taxes. This method takes into account 
future tax consequences, based on 
the effective tax rate, associated with 
differences between the carrying val-
ues of assets and liabilities and their 
taxable base, which gives immediate 
income statement effect to changes in 
income tax laws, including changes in 
the tax rates. 
A valuation allowance for a deferred 
tax asset is recorded when manage-
ment believes that it is more likely 
than not that this tax asset will not be 
realized.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUES

Revenues are recognized when title 
passes from the seller to the custom-
er, the contract price is fixed or deter-
minable and collectibility of the receiv-
able is reasonably assured. Specifically, 
domestic sales of crude oil and gas, 
as well as petroleum products and 
materials are recognized when title 
passes. For export sales, title general-
ly passes at the border of the Russian 
Federation and the Company covers 
transportation expenses, duties and 

taxes on those sales. Revenues 
include excise taxes and cus-
tom duties (see Note 23). 
Sales of support services are 
recognized as services per-
formed provided that the serv-
ice price can be determined 
and no significant uncertain-
ties regarding the receipt of 
revenues exist.
Revenues are shown net of 
value added tax.

TRANSPORTATION
EXPENSES

Transportation expenses 
recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income repre-
sent all expenses incurred in 
the transportation of crude 
oil and petroleum products via 
the Trasneft pipeline network, 
as well as by railway and other 
transport means.

REFINERY 
MAINTENANCE COSTS

The Company recognizes the 
costs of overhauls and preven-
tive maintenance performed 
with respect to oil refining 
assets as expenses when 
incurred.

ENVIRONMENTAL 
LIABILITIES

Environmental expenditures 
are expensed or capitalized, 
depending upon their future 
economic benefit. Expendi-
tures that relate to an exist-
ing condition caused by past 
operations, and do not have a 
future economic benefit, are 
expensed. Liabilities for these 

expenditures are recorded on 
an undiscounted basis when 
environmental assessments 
or clean-ups are probable and 
the costs can be reasonably 
estimated.

GUARANTEES

The fair value of a guarantee 
is determined and recorded 
as a liability at the time when 
the guarantee is issued. The 
initial guarantee amount is 
subsequently remeasured to 
reflect the changes in the un-
derlying liability. The expense 
is included in the related line 
items of the consolidated in-
come statement, based on the 
nature of the guarantee. When 
the likelihood of performing on 
a guarantee becomes probable, 
a liability is accrued, provided 
it is reasonably determinable 
on the basis of the facts and 
circumstances at that time.

COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME

The Company applies 
SFAS 130, Reporting Com-
prehensive Income, which 
establishes standards for the 
calculation and reporting of 
the Company’s comprehensive 
income (net income plus all 
other changes in net assets 
from non-owner sources) and 
its components in consolidated 
financial statements. 
As of December 31, 2003, 
the Company recorded other 
accumulated comprehen-
sive income in the amount of 
US$ 13 million that includes 
an unrealized holding gain 

resulting from appreciation of 
available-for-sale securities 
to their market value. There 
was no tax effect as a result of 
this appreciation.
In the first six months of 2004, 
the securities were sold and 
an unrealized gain on these 
securities was recognized as 
other income together with 
the gain from the sales of the 
securities. 
As of December 31, 2005 and 
2004, there are no material 
comprehensive income items 
and, therefore, comprehensive 
income for 2005 and 2004 
equals net income.

ACCOUNTING 
FOR CONTINGENCIES

Certain conditions may exist 
as of the date of these con-
solidated financial statements 
which may further result in a 
loss to the Company, but which 
will only be resolved when one 
or more future events occur 
or fail to occur. The Company’s 
management makes an as-
sessment of such contingent 
liabilities which is based on 
assumptions and is a matter 
of opinion. In assessing loss 
contingencies relating to legal 
or tax proceedings that involve 
the Company or unasserted 
claims that may result in such 
proceedings, the Company, 
after consultation with legal 
or tax advisors, evaluates 
the perceived merits of any 
legal or tax proceedings or 
unasserted claims as well as 
the perceived merits of the 
amount of relief sought or ex-
pected to be sought therein.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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If the assessment of a contingency 
indicates that it is probable that a 
loss will be incurred and the amount 
of the liability can be estimated, then 
the estimated liability is accrued in 
the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. If the assessment indi-
cates that a potentially material loss 
contingency is not probable, but is 
reasonably possible, or is probable but 
cannot be estimated, then the nature 
of the contingent liability, together 
with an estimate of the range of pos-
sible loss if determinable and material, 
would be disclosed.
Loss contingencies considered remote 
are generally not disclosed unless 
they involve guarantees, in which case 
the nature of the guarantee would be 
disclosed. However, in some instances 
in which disclosure is not otherwise 
required, the Company may disclose 
contingent liabilities or other uncer-
tainties of an unusual nature which, in 
the judgment of management after 
consultation with its legal or tax coun-
sel, may be of interest to shareholders 
or others.

RECENT ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS

In November 2004, the FASB issued 
SFAS 151, Inventory Costs, an amend-
ment of the Accounting Research 
Bulletin (“ARB”) 43, Chapter 4. The 
standard provides that abnormal 
amounts of idle facility expense, 
freight, handling costs, and wasted 
materials (spoilage) should be recog-
nized as current-period charges and 
requires the allocation of fixed pro-
duction overheads to inventory based 
on the normal capacity of the produc-
tion facilities. The guidance is effective 
for inventory costs incurred during 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2005. The Company will apply this 

standard with respect to inventory 
costs incurred during the fiscal year 
beginning from January 1, 2006. The 
management of the Company has not 
identified the impact this standard will 
have on the Company’s financial posi-
tion and results of operations.
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS 
154, Accounting Changes and Error 
Corrections. SFAS 154 replaces Ac-
counting Principles Board Opinion 20, 
Accounting Changes (“APB 20”), and 
SFAS 3, Reporting Changes in Interim 
Financial Statements, and changes 
the requirements for the account-
ing for and reporting of a change 
in accounting principles. SFAS 154 
requires retrospective application 
to prior period’s financial statements 
of all changes in accounting principle, 
unless it is impractical to determine 
either the period-specific effects or 
the cumulative effect of the change, 
if a pronouncement which requires 
the change in accounting principle 
does not include specific transition 
provisions. SFAS 154 carries forward 
without change the guidance contained 
in APB 20 for reporting the correc-
tion of an error in previously issued 
financial statements and a change 
in accounting estimates. The Company 
currently cannot estimate the impact 
the adoption of FAS 154 will have on 
its consolidated financial statements 
as no such accounting changes are 
currently expected.
In June 2005, the FASB’s Emerging 
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached 
a consensus on Issue 05-6 
(“EITF 05-6”), Determining the Amor-
tization Period for Leasehold Im-
provements. EITF 05-6 requires that 
leasehold improvements acquired in 
a business combination or purchased 
subsequent to the inception of the 
operating lease should be amortized 
over the lesser of the useful life of the 

asset or the lease term that 
includes reasonably assured 
lease renewals as determined 
on the date of the acquisition 
of the leasehold improvement. 
EITF 05-6 is effective during 
reporting periods beginning 
after June 15, 2005 and is 
not expected to have a mate-
rial impact on the Company’s 
results and financial position.
On September 15, 2005 FASB 
issued EITF Issue No. 04-13 
Accounting for Purchases and 
Sales of Inventory with the 
Same Counterparty. This EITF 
addresses the following issues: 
determining whether two or 
more exchange transactions 
involving inventory with the 
same counterparty are en-
tered into in contemplation 
of one another and should be 
viewed as a single exchange 
transaction for purposes 
of evaluating the effect of 
APB 29, Accounting for Non-
monetary Transactions; deter-
mining whether nonmonetary 
exchanges of inventory in the 
same line of business should be 
recognized at fair value. This 
EITF should be applied to new 
arrangements entered into 
in reporting periods beginning 
after March 15, 2006 and 
to modifications or renewals 
of existing arrangements after 
that date. The Company does 
not expect that the applica-
tion of EITF 04-13 will have 
a material impact on its “Sales” 
and “Operating expenses” ac-
counts in 2006. The Company 
has identified no material 
exchanges of inventory that 
should be recognized at fair 
value according to EITF 04-13. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (3)
The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

SFAS 143, ACCOUNTING FOR 
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Since January 1, 2003, the Company 
has been applying SFAS 143, Account-
ing for Asset Retirement Obligations. 
This statement applies to obligations 
associated with the retirement of tan-
gible long-lived assets upon expiration 
of their useful lives. In accordance to 
SFAS 143, fair value of asset retire-
ment obligations should be recognized 
in the period when the obligations oc-
curred if the fair value could be reason-
ably determined. Costs associated with 
asset retirement are capitalized within 
the net book value of long-lived assets.

As of January 1, 2003, the Company 
recorded an adjustment for the ac-
cumulated effect of the change in ac-
counting principle as a result of adop-
tion of this statement that increased 
net profit by US$ 50 million, net of 
income tax. The effect of the adoption 
of this statement includes an increase 
in the net book value of oil and gas 
properties of US$ 23 million, a de-
crease in asset retirement obligations 
of US$ 42 million, and an increase in 
deferred tax liability of US$ 16 million.
The effect of this accounting change 
on basic and diluted earning per share 
for the year ended December 31, 
2003 is presented below (in US$):

Earnings per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 0.037

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, 0.005

Earnings per share – basic and diluted 0.042

FIN 46R, CONSOLIDATION 
OF VARIABLE-INTEREST ENTITIES

FIN 46R was applied from January 1, 
2004 for VIEs created after Decem-
ber 31, 2003, and from January 1, 
2005, for all other VIEs.
In 2005 the Company consolidated 
certain VIEs to which it provided fi-
nancing in order to construct offshore 
drilling assets. This consolidation did 
not have a material effect on the finan-

cial position and results of operations 
of the Company. 
The Company did not identify any VIEs 
where it holds a significant variable 
interest (including a significant im-
plicit variable interest) but is not the 
primary beneficiary.
The Company did not identify any 
subsidiaries which would need to be 
deconsolidated based on the 
FIN 46(R) guidance.
No entities requiring consolidation 
were identified in 2004.

OJSC YUGANSKNEFTEGAZ 
AND BAIKALFINANCE-
GROUP LLC

In late December 2004, the 
Company acquired a 100% 
interest in Baikalfinancegroup 
LLC, which a few days earlier 
had won an auction for the 
sale of a 76.79% interest in 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz, which 
represents 100% of the com-
mon shares of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz. Following payment 
of the auction price the shares 
were registered in the name 
of Baikalfinancegroup LLC 
on December 31, 2004. The 
minority interest in the share 
capital OJSC Yuganskneftegaz 
amounts to 23.21% and is held 
by Yukos Oil Company. Yukos Oil 
Company is both the previous 
owner of the common shares 
and also the current owner 
of preferred shares compris-
ing the minority interest. An 
open auction of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz’s common shares 
was conducted by the Rus-
sian bailiff service in order to 
recover a portion of the unpaid 
taxes due to the Russian tax 
authorities by Yukos Oil Com-

pany. This transaction has been 
accounted for as a purchase of 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz from 
Yukos Oil Company, in accord-
ance with SFAS 141, Business 
Combinations.
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz is 
engaged in exploration, devel-
opment, field facilities con-
struction, and production of 
hydrocarbons in West Siberia. 
The purpose of the transac-
tion was to acquire the oil and 
gas properties held by OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz. The fields 
held by OJSC Yuganskneftegaz 
are located in Khanty-Mansi 
Autonomous Area, with well 
developed infrastructure and 
are close to Transneft’s pipe-
line network.
The auction price (purchase 
price) paid for OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz shares was 
RUR 260,782 million (US$ 
9,398 million at the CBR 
exchange rate in effect on the 
settlement date). 
As discussed in Note 26 the 
Company’s acquisition of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz is currently 
subject to court challenges in 
the RF and in the USA.
The Company consolidated the 

balance sheet of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz as of December 31, 
2004 and the results of opera-
tions of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz 
from January 1, 2005. No re-
sults of operations are consoli-
dated during the year ended 
December 31, 2004 given that 
the acquisition occurred on 
December 31, 2004.
The fair value of net assets 
acquired amounted to US$ 
12,204 million primarily based 
on a report of an independ-
ent appraiser. Because the 
fair value of the net assets 
acquired exceeded the pur-
chase price, negative goodwill 
existed which has been allo-
cated proportionately between 
oil and gas properties and 
mineral rights. Subsequent 
to the Company’s preliminary 
December 31, 2004 purchase 
price allocation, adjustments 
were made as of September 
30, 2005 so as to reflect the 
Company’s revised estimate 
of the ultimate resolution of 
pre-acquisition contingencies. 
Significant changes in the pre-
liminary purchase price alloca-
tion are discussed in further 
detail below.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS (4) 
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Changes in Accounting Principles

The following table summarizes the Company’s allocation of the assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed:

Final allocation Initial allocation

ASSETS

Current assets:

Restricted cash 14 14

Short–term investments 22 22

Accounts receivable 606 3,900

Inventories 94 94

Prepaid expenses 1 1

Total current assets 737 4,031

Oil and gas properties, net 7,276 6,017

Mineral rights 9,786 6,837

Property, plant and equipment, net 370 370

Construction–in–progress 41 41

Deferred tax assets 3 3

Leased equipment 175 137

Other non–current assets 4 4

Total non–current assets 17,655 13,409

Total assets 18,392 17,440

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable (760) (760)

Short-term loans and borrowings and current portion long-term 
debt (385) (385)

Accrued income and other taxes (2,231) (1,395)

Other current liabilities (6) (6)

Total current liabilities (3,382) (2,546)

Long-term loans and borrowings net of current liabilities (625) (625)

Asset retirement obligations (387) (387)

Deferred tax liability (3,834) (2,759)

Total non-current liabilities (4,846) (3,771)

Total liabilities (8,228) (6,317)

Total net assets 10,164 11,123

Minority interest (766) (1,725)

Purchase price 9,398 9,398

While preparing its interim 
consolidated financial state-
ments for the third quarter 
of 2005, the Company revised 
its previous estimates of cer-
tain pre-acquisitions contin-
gencies and made the following 
significant adjustments to the 
preliminary purchase price 
allocation:

 As of December 31, 2004, 
a total of US$ 3,881 mil-
lion was due from Yukos Oil 
Company and its affiliates 
for oil supplied prior to the 
acquisition of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz. The Company’s 
preliminary allocation of the 
purchase price at December 
31, 2004 considered these 
amounts to be fully recover-
able within a one year period 
based on the then considered 
prospects of (i) amicable 
settlement with Yukos Oil 
Company’s previous common 
shareholders, (ii) an offset 
against related liabilities 
to Yukos Oil Company and 
its affiliates, (iii) gaining 
control of certain other 
valuable assets of Yukos Oil 
Company to directly settle 
the receivables, and/or (iv) 
other means which might 
have been supported by the 
Company’s shareholder. This 
view was based on prelimi-
nary information available 
to the Company immediately 
subsequent to its acquisition 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. 

Throughout the first nine 
months of 2005, the Compa-
ny continued to evaluate each 
of these options. Ultimately, 
the Company concluded while 
preparing its September 30, 
2005 consolidated financial 
statements that its previous 
estimates should be revised. 
The Company continues to 
believe that it has legally val-
id claims over these assets 
and that the amounts should 
be recoverable at some point 
in the future. However, the 
Company now realizes that it 
cannot reasonably estimate 
the timing and the precise 
amount of any recovery. 
Accordingly, the Company 
has fully provided for these 
amounts as of September 
30, 2005 through an adjust-
ment to the purchase price 
allocation, after netting the 
receivables in the amount of 
US$ 588 million with related 
payables of Yukos Oil Com-
pany and its affiliates, where 
the legal right to offset 
existed.

 As of September 30, 2005 
the Company accrued ap-
proximately US$ 836 million 
of a tax contingency re-
flecting its then anticipated 
settlement of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz’s 1999 – 2003 
tax obligations to the Rus-
sian tax authorities. As dis-
cussed in Notes 26 and 29 
final resolution of this matter 
occurred in April 2006. 

As a result of the above ad-
justments and their related 
impact on both deferred taxes 
and minority interest accounts, 
the acquired net assets (and, 
accordingly, negative goodwill) 
were decreased by 
US$ 4,246 million as of 
September 30, 2005. In the 
final purchase price alloca-
tion negative goodwill of US$ 
2,806 million was allocated 
proportionally between oil 
and gas properties and min-
eral rights. The impact on the 
consolidated statement of 
income of this purchase price 
allocation adjustment has been 
accounted for retrospectively 
from January 1, 2005. 

Other significant elements of 
the Company’s purchase price 
allocation include:

 For the purposes of valua-
tion of oil and gas properties, 
property, plant and equip-
ment, and construction-in-
progress which relate to 
minority interest, the Com-
pany used their appraised 
fair values as the previous 
controlling shareholder did 
not provide the records of 
the historical cost of these 
non-current assets. Minor-
ity interest which relates to 
other assets and liabilities 
was determined on the basis 
of historical cost.

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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 OJSC Yuganskneftegaz in its operat-
ing activities enters into short-term 
lease contracts for a significant 
number of wells and related equip-
ment and facilities. These agree-
ments are entered into with the 
owners of the wells, equipment and 
facilities, which are Yukos Oil Compa-
ny and certain of its subsidiaries. All 
of the lease agreements are cancel-
lable in nature and most expire within 
one year (see Note 14). The inability 
of the Company to extend these lease 
agreements and/or otherwise obtain 
rights to use the wells and related 
facilities in the oil production may 
have material adverse consequences 
for the Company’s ability to extract 
and recover a portion of the carrying 
value of the $7,276 million in oil and 
gas properties and the $9,786 mil-
lion in mineral rights acquired in the 
business combination. During 2005, 
all the expired lease contracts were 
extended for a period of up to one 
year. The Company’s management 
plans to attempt to further extend 
the above leases and believes that 
given Yukos Oil Company’s current 
bankruptcy proceedings, that the 
administrator of Yukos Oil Company 
is likely to be inclined to do the same. 
Following a claim brought by OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz in March 2006, 
the Moscow Arbitration Court ruled 
that the 100% ownership interest 
in one of the subsidiaries, which is 
the most significant lessor, should be 
transferred from Yukos Oil Com-
pany to OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. This 
ruling is subject to further appeals 
and the Company has not yet as-
sessed the impact of such transfer, 
if any, on the financial position or 
results of operations. While the 

Company believes that it will likely 
be able either to renew the above 
leases and/or otherwise continue to 
extract minerals from the related 
sites, no assurances can be provided 
in this regard.

 The deferred tax liability presented 
in the above allocation represents 
the difference between fair values of 
assets and liabilities of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz and their respective tax 
basis. 

Pro forma financial information as-
suming that the acquisition of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz had occurred as of 
the beginning of 2003 has not been 
presented herein as is required by 
SFAS 141. This information is not pre-
sented as the Company does not have 
access to reliable US GAAP financial 
information for OJSC Yugansknefte-
gaz for periods prior to acquisition.

OJSC NORTHERN OIL

In June 2003 the Company acquired 
a 100% interest in OJSC Northern 
Oil. OJSC Northern Oil is engaged in 
exploration, development field facili-
ties construction and production of 
hydrocarbons in the Timan-Pechora 
region in the northern part of the Rus-
sian Federation.
The purpose of this transaction was to 
acquire the oil and gas properties held 
by OJSC Northern Oil with a developed 
infrastructure and proximity to the 
OJSC Transneft pipeline system.
The total purchase price which was 
paid in cash amounted to 18,990 
million rubles (US$ 623 million at the 
CBR exchange rate in effect on the 
settlement dates).

Changes in Accounting PrinciplesCHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The purchase price was fully allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows:

Final allocation

ASSETS

Current assets: 88

Oil and gas properties, net 233

Mineral rights 533

Other non–current assets 4

Total non–current assets 770

Total assets 858

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities (235)

Non-current liabilities –

Total liabilities (235)

Total net assets acquired 623

Minority interest –

Purchase price 623

The results of operations of OJSC Northern Oil are consolidated from July 1, 2003 and are not material 
to warrant pro-forma presentation.
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OJSC VERKHNECHONSKNEFTEGAZ 

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the 
Company acquired 7,781,449 common 
shares (25.94% of the total number 
of common shares) of OJSC Verkhne-
chonskneftegaz. OJSC Verkhnechon-
skneftegaz holds the licence for the 
development of the Verkhnechonskoye 
oil and gas condensate deposit, which 
is the largest oil deposit in the Irkutsk 
region.
The purchase price amounted to US$ 
230 million and was paid in cash. The 
acquisition price was fully allocated to 
the fair values of the acquired assets 
and liabilities. In these consolidated fi-
nancial statements, the Company’s in-
terest in OJSC Verkhnechonsknefte-
gaz shares is accounted for using the 
equity method (see Note 10).

ACQUISITION 
OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS 

ENISEINEFT LLC 
AND TAYMYRNEFT LLC

In 2003, Rosneft acquired a 100% 
interest in Anglo-Siberian Oil Com-
pany (“ASOC”) for US$ 76 million. 
The purpose of the transaction was 
to acquire control over Taimyrneft 
LLC and Eniseineft LLC, which hold 
exploration and production licences 
for the North-Vankor and Vankor 
oilfields respectively. As a result, 
the Company effectively acquired 
60% of Taimyrneft LLC and 59% of 
Eniseineft LLC. The acquisition price 
was fully allocated to the fair value of 

assets acquired and liabilities as-
sumed.
In the first half of 2004, the Company 
acquired a 100% interest in Losiem 
Commercial for US$ 69 million. As a 
result of this transaction, the Compa-
ny’s share in Eniseineft LLC reached 
95%. The acquisition price was fully 
allocated to the fair value of assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. 
Subsequently, the Company’s share in 
Eniseineft LLC increased to 99%.

OJSC ROSNEFT-TUAPSE REFINERY

In December 2004, the Company 
acquired 2,152,314 common shares 
(39.38% of the total number of com-
mon shares) and 907,038 preferred 
shares (49.79% of the total number 
of preferred shares) in OJSC Ros-
neft – Tuapse Refinery through its 
overseas subsidiary RN–International, 
thus increasing its share in the share 
capital of OJSC Rosneft – Tuapse 
Refinery to 81.23%. The purchase 
price of the above shares amounted to 
US$ 184 million and was paid in cash. 
The excess of the purchase price over 
the fair value of net assets amounted 
to US$ 35 million and was recorded as 
goodwill (See Note 15). 
In connection with the acquisition of 
the additional share in OJSC Ros-
neft – Tuapse Refinery, the Company 
also purchased 62% of the shares of 
OJSC Moto for US$ 2 million and 67% 
of the shares of CJSC Tuapse-Kemoil 
for US$ 4 million. Both companies 
provide petroleum refining, marketing 
and distribution services. 

OJSC ROSNEFT-
KRASNODARNEFTEGAZ

In December 2004, OJSC 
Rosneft-Termneft (“Ter-
mneft”), which was the Com-
pany’s subsidiary, merged 
with OJSC Krasnodarneftegaz 
(“Krasnodarneftegaz”) by 
way of conversion of Termeft 
shares into Krasnodarnefte-
gaz shares. The merger did not 
have any significant impact 
on the consolidated financial 
statements.
In the first half of 2005, the 
Company acquired 33,337,187 
common shares (38.66% of 
the total number of com-
mon shares) and 17,633,509 
preferred shares (61.63% of 
the total number of preferred 
shares) in OJSC Rosneft-
Krasnodarneftegaz, thus in-
creasing its share in the share 
capital of OJSC Rosneft-Kras-
nodarneftegaz to 95.46%. The 
purchase price of the above 

shares amounted to US$ 110 
million and was paid in cash. 
The purchase price was fully 
allocated to the fair values of 
the acquired assets and liabili-
ties. This allocation is prelimi-
nary and will be adjusted upon 
completion of the valuation of 
mineral rights.

OJSC 
SELKUPNEFTEGAZ 

In the third quarter of 2005, 
the Company acquired 34 
common shares (34% of the 
total number of common 
shares) in OJSC Selkupnefte-
gaz, thus increasing its share 
in the share capital of 
OJSC Selkupneftegaz to 100%. 
The purchase price of these 
shares amounted to US$ 
20 million and was paid in cash. 
The purchase price was fully 
allocated to the fair values of 
the acquired assets and liabili-
ties. This allocation is prelimi-

nary and will be adjusted upon 
completion of the valuation of 
mineral rights.

OTHER CHANGES 
TO THE STRUCTURE 
OF THE COMPANY 

In accordance with its long-
term program for the dis-
posal of non-core assets, 
the Company is selling its 
subsidiaries engaged in non-
core businesses. Interests 
in CJSC FK Rosneft-Finance 
and SK Neftepolis LLC were 
sold during 2004 and 2005, 
respectively. The resulting 
gain from the sale of these 
interests was recognized in 
the consolidated financial 
statements for the year end-
ing December 31, 2004 in the 
amount of US$ 1 million.

The Company also sold its 
share of CJSC Sevmornefte-
gaz (see Note 10).

Changes in Accounting PrinciplesCHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5)

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

Cash at hand and cash in bank in RUR 414 721 86

Cash at hand and cash in bank – foreign currencies 394 283 100

Deposits and cash in transit 365 29 42

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,173 1,033 228

Restricted cash as of December 31 comprises the following:

2005 2004 2003

Obligatory reserve with the CBR 13 11 7

Other restricted cash 10 14 –

Total restricted cash 23  25 7

The obligatory reserve of VBRR with 
the CBR represents the amounts 
deposited with the CBR for securing 
the current operating activity of the 
bank. Credit institutions are required 
to maintain a non-interest earning 
cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with 
the CBR, the amount of which depends 
on the level of funds attracted by the 
credit institution and this amount has 
certain restrictions for use.
Cash accounts denominated in foreign 
currencies represent primarily cash 
in US$.

Deposits represent bank deposits 
that may be readily convertible into 
cash and may be withdrawn by the 
Company at any time without prior 
notice or penalties.
As part of its cash management and 
credit risk function, the Company reg-
ularly evaluates the creditworthiness 
of financial and banking institutions 
where it places its deposits. Bank-
ing relationships are primarily with 
Russian subsidiaries of international 
banking institutions and certain large 
Russian banks.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (6) 

Short-term investments as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003 

Short-term loans granted 27 28 51

Loans to related parties 32 – 199

Trading securities 

Short-term promissory notes 7 15 10

Corporate and state bonds 74 50 20

Other 10 14 14

Settlements on notes with related party 7 26 –

Bank deposits 3 3 19

Short-term assignment agreements – 22 –

Investments for resale 2 13 –

Other 3 12 2

Total short-term investments 165 183 315

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

State bonds primarily repre-
sent federal loan bonds issued 
by the Ministry of Finance of 
the Russian Federation with 
maturity ranging from June 
2007 to November 2021, 
coupon yields in 2005 ranging 

from 8.0% to 11.0% p.a. and 
yields to maturity ranging from 
6.2% to 7.9% p.a. depending on 
the issue.
Corporate bonds represent 
bonds issued by large Russian 
corporations with maturity 

ranging from July 2007 to 
February 2010 and interest 
rates ranging from 11.00% to 
14.65%.
Unrealized gains and losses on 
available-for-sale securities 
are not significant.

ANNUAL REPORT



48 49

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET (7)

Accounts receivable as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003 

Trade receivables 935 3,982 196

Value added tax receivable 1,477 518 382

Other taxes 88 35 20

Banking loans to customers 305 241 139

Other 122 98 78

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (69) (75) (62)

Total accounts receivable, net 2,858 4,799 753

INVENTORIES (8)

Inventories as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003 

Materials and supplies 332 276 190

Crude oil and gas 300 115 70

Petroleum products 182 126 71

Total inventories 814 517 331

Materials and supplies mostly include spare parts, construction materials and pipes. Petroleum products 
also include those designated for sale as well as for own use.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (9)

Prepayments and other current assets as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

Prepayments to suppliers 381 180 126

Insurance prepayments 46 8 13

Customs 451 41 2

Other 19 27 14

Total prepayments and other current assets 897 256 155

Customs primarily represent export duty prepayments related to the export of crude oil and petroleum 
products (see Note 23). 

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The Company’s trade accounts receiv-
able are denominated primarily in US 
dollars. Credit risk is managed through 
the use of letters of credit, and re-
questing advance payments from cus-
tomers for the majority of sales.
Value added tax receivable (VAT) pri-
marily includes VAT related to export 
sales, which is reimbursed from the 
budget in accordance with Russian tax 
legislation.
As of December 31, 2004, trade re-
ceivables included Yukos Oil Company 

payables to OJSC Yuganskneftegaz in 
the amount of US$ 3,881 million for 
oil supplied during 2004. Following 
the recoverability analysis, the above 
receivables were fully written down 
considering significant uncertainties 
regarding the timing and amount of 
repayment. The write down was made 
after offsetting liabilities against 
these receivables in the amount of 
US$ 588 million. (See Note 29 for the 
discussion of Yukos Oil Company bank-
ruptcy proceedings).
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LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (10) 

Long-term investments as of December 31 comprise the following: 

2005 2004 2003

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS

Polar Lights Company LLC 94 65 29

CJSC Kaspiy-1 29 29 16

JV Rosneft-Shell Caspian Ventures Limited 21 – –

OJSC Daltransgaz 11 11 9

CJSC Sevmorneftegaz – – 36

JV Aday Petroleum Company 2 2 2

ОJSC Verkhnechonskneftegaz 231 – –

Other 2 1 –

Total 390 108 92

AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES 

Russian government bonds 2 9 3

Long-term promissory notes 7 98 1

HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES 

Long-term loans granted 2 5 21

Long-term loans to equity investees 21 36 17

Investments in joint operations 4 4 12

Cost method investments 10 17 35

Total long-term investments 436 277 181

Equity share in income/(loss) of material investments recorded using the equity 
method:

Participation interest 
(percentage) as of 

December 31, 2005

Share in income/(loss) 
of equity investees

2005 2004 2003

Polar Lights Company LLC 50.00 42 50 1

CJSC Sevmorneftegaz – − (3) −

OJSC Daltransgaz 25.00 − − −

JV Rosneft-Shell 
Caspian Ventures Limited 51.00 26 − −

Rosneft-Stroytransgaz LLC 50.00 (17) − (7)

CJSC Kaspiy-1 45.00 − (1) −

JV Aday Petroleum Company 50.00 − − −

OJSC Verkhnechonskneftegaz 25.94 1 − −

Other (1) 6 6

Total equity share 51 52 −

CJSC SEVMORNEFTEGAZ

In January 2002, the Com-
pany, through OJSC Ros-
neft-Purneftegaz, and OJSC 
Gazprom, through CJSC 
Rosshelf jointly established 
CJSC Sevmorneftegaz 
with equal shares in equity. 
The cost of investment in 
CJSC Sevmorneftegaz was 
US$ 17 thousand. CJSC 
Sevmorneftegaz is primarily 
engaged in exploration and 
production activities on the 
Prirazlomnoye and Shtok-
manovskoye oil and gas con-
densate fields.
In December 2004, it was 
resolved to sell the Company’s 
share in the project to the 
other participant (the “Buyer”) 
and full payment was received 
under the share purchase 
agreement. At December 31, 
2004 and 2003 this invest-
ment was classified under 
equity method investments. 
Title to shares in CJSC Sev-
morneftegaz was transferred 
to the Buyer in the first half of 
2005. Under the share pur-
chase provisions, the Buyer 
had the right to notify the 
Company in writing, not later 
than the end of June 2005, of 
its intention to sell the ac-
quired share back to the Com-
pany and the Company was 
obliged to take back and pay 

for such share. The Buyer did 
not exercise its right to repur-
chase at the time stipulated in 
the contract, therefore in June 
2005 the Company recorded a 
gain on the sale of the interest 
in CJSC Sevmorneftegaz in the 
amount of US$ 1,303 million.

POLAR LIGHTS COMPANY 
LLC (“PLC”) 

PLC is a limited liability com-
pany owned 50% by Conoco 
Phillips Timan-Pechora Inc., 
and 50% by the Company. PLC 
is primarily engaged in the 
development of the Ardalin and 
satellite fields in the Timan-
Pechora Basin located 125 kil-
ometers south of the Barents 
Sea above the Arctic Circle. 
Development of the Ardalin 
field commenced in late 1992 
and the first oil was produced 
in 1994. 

JV ROSNEFT-SHELL 
CASPIAN VENTURES 
LIMITED

JV Rosneft-Shell Caspian 
Ventures Limited (“JV”) is 
a joint venture in which the 
Company holds a 51% interest. 
The Articles of Incorporation 
of this joint venture stipulate, 
however, that key decisions 
regarding its business shall be 
subject to unanimous approval 

by both participants and none 
of the participants has a pref-
erential voting right.
On February 6, 1997, the Com-
pany, through the JV, signed an 
agreement with eight oil and 
gas companies and govern-
ment agencies of the Russian 
Federation and the Republic of 
Kazakhstan for the establish-
ment of Caspian Pipeline Con-
sortium (“CPC”). The purpose 
of the consortium is to design, 
finance, construct and operate 
a pipeline from the oil fields lo-
cated in Western Kazakhstan 
through Russia to the port of 
Novorossiysk. The interest of 
the JV in the CPC is 7.5%. In 
October 2001, the CPC pipe-
line was put in operation.

OJSC DALTRANSGAZ

OJSC Daltransgaz is an opera-
tor for the program to supply 
gas to the Sakhalin Region and 
the Khabarovsk and Primorye 
Territories. 

CJSC KASPIY-1

In 1997, a subsidiary of the 
Company made a contribution 
to the share capital of CJSC 
Kaspiy-1, which was founded 
to construct an oil refinery in 
Makhachkala (Dagestan Re-
public). The refinery is planned 
to be commissioned in 2006.

Long-Term Investments 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES, NET (11)

Oil and gas properties as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

Wells and related facilities 12,606 10,524 4,754

Mineral rights 10,723 7,562 712

Pipelines 1,057 802 293

Equipment under capital lease (Note 14) 214 144 53

Total 24,600 19,032 5,812

Less: accumulated depletion (3,661) (2,492) (2,520)

Net oil and gas properties 20,939 16,540 3,292

Mineral rights include costs to acquire unproved properties in the amount of 
US$ 1,382 million as of December 31, 2005, US$ 1,051 million as of 2004, and 
US$ 266 million as of December 31, 2003. The Company plans to explore and 
develop the respective fields. The Company’s management believes these costs are 
recoverable.

For the purposes of evaluation of the 
reserves as of December 31, 2005, 
2004 and 2003, the Company used 
oil and gas reserves data prepared 
by DeGolyer and MacNaughton, 
independent reservoir engineers. 
The Company used the reserve report 
to calculate depreciation, depletion 
and amortization relating to oil and 
gas properties for 2005, 2004 and 
2003. The reserve report was also 
used for the assessment of impair-
ment of long-lived assets and for the 
required supplemental disclosure for 
oil and gas activities (see supplemen-
tary oil and gas disclosure). 
As described in the “Depreciation, 
depletion and amortization” section 
of Note 2, the Company calculates 
depletion using the unit-of-production 
method over proved or proved devel-
oped oil and gas reserves depending 
on the nature of the costs involved. 
The proved or proved developed re-

serves used in the unit of production 
method assume the extension of the 
Company’s production licences beyond 
their current expiration dates until 
the end of the economic lives of the 
fields as discussed below in further 
detail.
The Company’s oil and gas fields are 
located principally in the territory of 
the Russian Federation. The Company 
obtains licences from the governmen-
tal authorities to explore and produce 
oil and gas from these fields. The 
Company’s existing production licenc-
es generally expire during the period 
2006 to 2026, Expiration dates of 
licences for the most significant fields 
are between 2013 and 2019, and the 
licence for the largest field, Priob-
skoye, expires in 2019. The economic 
lives of the licensed fields extend sig-
nificantly beyond these dates. Under 
Russian law, the Company is entitled 
to renew the licences to the end of 

the economic lives of the fields, 
provided certain conditions 
are met. Article 10 of the Sub-
soil Law, Concerning Subsur-
face Resources, provides that 
a licence to use a field “shall 
be” extended at its scheduled 
termination at the initiative of 
the subsoil user if necessary 
to finish production of the field, 
provided that there are no 
violations of the conditions of 
the licence. 
The legislative history of Arti-
cle 10 indicates that the term 

“shall” replaced the term “may” 
in August 2004, clarifying that 
the subsoil user has an abso-
lute right to extend the licence 
term so long as it has not 
violated the conditions of the 
licence. In 2005 the Company 
extended the terms of 39 of 
its production licences for the 
period equivalent to the ex-
pected life of the fields. There 
were no unsuccessful licence 
renewal applications.
The Company’s current pro-
duction plans are based on the 
assumption, which manage-
ment considers to be reason-
ably certain, that the Company 
will be able to extend all other 
existing licences. These plans 
have been designed on the 
basis that the Company will be 
producing crude oil through 
the economic lives of the fields 
and not with a view to exploit-
ing the Company’s reserves to 
maximum effect only through 
the licence expiration dates. 
Accordingly, management has 

included in proved reserves in 
the supplementary information 
on oil and gas exploration and 
production activities of the 
consolidated financial state-
ments as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2005 all 
reserves that otherwise meet 
the standards for being char-
acterized as “proved” and that 
the Company estimates the 
Company can produce through 
the economic lives of Compa-
ny’s licensed fields.
Proved reserves should gener-
ally be limited to those that 
can be produced through the 
licence expiration date un-
less there is a long and clear 
track record which supports 
the conclusion that extension 
of the license will be granted 
as a matter of course. The 
Company believes that exten-
sion of the licences will occur 
as a matter of course as fully 
described above. 

SAKHALIN-1 

The Company’s primary invest-
ment in a PSA is through the 
Sakhalin-1 project (PSA 1), 
which is operated by Exxon-
Mobil, one of the PSA partici-
pants. In February 2001, the 
Company signed an agreement 
with Oil and Natural Gas Cor-
poration (“ONGC”) in relation 
to its interest in the PSA 1 
which reduced the Company’s 
interest to 20%. The Company 
records the investment in its 
retained share under the “car-

ried interest” method. Com-
mercial hydrocarbon produc-
tion under PSA 1 commenced 
in October 2005. Accordingly, 
the Company’s share in hydro-
carbon reserves was reclas-
sified as proved developed 
reserves. 

SAKHALIN-5 

The participants of the project 
are subsidiaries of the Compa-
ny and BP p.l.c. In March 2004, 
the licence for geological study 
of the Kaigansko-Vasyukansky 
block held by the Company was 
transferred to CJSC Elvari 
Neftegaz, which is a 100% 
subsidiary of Elvary Neftegaz 
Holdings B.V., jointly estab-
lished by the participants of 
the project. 
The Shareholders and Oper-
ating Agreement was signed 
between the participants and 
the operator in June 2004. In 
accordance with the terms 
of the agreement, during the 
exploration stage project 
funding will be fully provided by 
BP p.l.c., while during the de-
velopment stage BP p.l.c. will 
carry a portion of payments 
due from the Company and 
will provide credit support to 
obtain project funding.
If the project proves to be 
unsuccessful, BP p.l.c. bears all 
losses incurred. The Company 
recognizes this investment as 
an equity interest in a related 
company under the equity 
method of accounting. 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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OTHER PROJECTS

The Company is a party to other 
projects associated with the devel-
opment of the Sakhalin shelf (Za-
padno-Shmidtovsky and Vostochno-
Shmidtovsky blocks). Under those 
arrangements, the other participant 
(BP p.l.c.) has agreed to pay for explo-
ration costs on behalf of the Company. 
Exploration and development of these 
projects is at an early stage. The Com-
pany’s costs (currently insignificant) 
associated with these projects were 
capitalized. 
In July 2005, the Company entered 
into a PSA agreement with the Kaza-
khstan Government for the joint de-
velopment of Kurmangazy oil and gas 
field. The participants of the project 
are a subsidiary of the Company, 
OJSC “NK Rosneft – RN Kazakhstan” 
(“RN Kazakhstan”) and a subsidiary of 
Kazakhstan State JSC KazMunaiGaz, 

JSC “NK KazMunaiGaz – KazMun-
aiTeniz”, with equal shares of 50%. 
The agreement provides for a signing 
bonus in the amount of US$ 50 mil-
lion. The Company’s share of US$ 25 
million is recognized within mineral 
rights. In accordance with the terms 
of the agreement, upon commercial 
discovery the RF has an option to buy 
a 25% share in the project at a future 
market price, by reducing the share 
of the Company’s subsidiary in the 
project. If the RF does not exercise its 
option, this share shall be sold to 3rd 
parties at a market price or redis-
tributed between the participants in 
equal parts. If the share is sold, the 
proceeds from the sale shall cover the 
expenses already incurred, including 
those suffered by RN Kazakhstan and 
related to the sold share. The excess 
of the proceeds from the sale of share 
over the expenses shall be equally dis-
tributed between the participants.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (12)

Property, plant and equipment as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003 

Offshore drilling assets – – 173

Service vessels 8 13 97

Buildings and constructions 1,941 1,729 1,277

Plant and machinery 1,096 1,037 568

Vehicles and other equipment 356 314 312

Assets under capital lease (Note 14) 12 43 35

Total 3,413 3,136 2,462

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,383) (1,378) (1,399)

Property, plant and equipment, net 2,030 1,758 1,063

CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS (13)

Construction-in-progress includes various construction projects as well as machinery and equipment 
delivered but not yet installed. Construction-in-progress as of December 31 comprises the following:

2005 2004 2003

Equipment to be installed 100 61 40

Buildings and constructions 303 273 224

Plant and machinery 106 148 108

Total construction-in-progress 509 482 372

OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES, NET

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LEASED PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (14)

Since 2003, the Company has entered into a number of agreements for the lease of 
equipment and other assets. 

The following is the analysis of the property, plant and equipment under capital 
leases as of December 31:

2005 2004 2003

Oil and gas properties 214 144 53

Less: accumulated depletion (10) (2) (2)

Oil and gas properties, net 204 142 51

Other property, plant and equipment

Buildings and constructions 1 1 –

Plant and machinery 5 16 12

Vehicles 6 26 23

Total 12 43 35

Less: accumulated depreciation (3) (8) (2)

Property, plant and equipment, net 9 35 33

Total net book value of leased assets 213 177 84

Below is the analysis of the repayment of capital lease obligations as of December 31: 

2005

2006 24

2007 7

2008 5

2009 6

42

Imputed interest (4)

Present value of capital lease payments 38

OPERATING LEASE 

The Company has obligations which are primarily related to the operating lease of 
oil and gas facilities in the amount of US$ 62 million for the subsequent year. See 
Note 4.

The total amount of operating lease expenses was as follows: 

2005 2004 2003 

Total lease expenses 120 16 40

Total sublease revenues 3 – –

GOODWILL (15)

Other non-current assets in-
clude a loan to OJSC Sibur-Tu-
men in the amount of US$ 4 mil-
lion and US$ 16 million as 
of December 31, 2005 and 
December 31, 2004, respec-
tively, which was restructured 
under an amicable agreement. 

Goodwill in the amount of 
US$ 35 million represents the 
excess of the purchase price 
of a share in OJSC Rosneft-

Tuapse Refinery (“TNPZ”) over 
the fair value of the corre-
sponding share in net assets 
(See Note 4). As of Decem-

ber 31, 2005, no impairment 
of goodwill arising from the 
acquisition of an additional 
share in TNPZ was identified. 

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (16) 
As of December 31, 2003, this 
loan was stated within ac-
counts receivable (see Note 7). 
This loan receivable is recorded 
at fair value which has been 
calculated based on the repay-
ment schedule, and will be fully 
repaid in 2013. A portion of 

the loan receivable from OJSC 
Sibur-Tyumen in the amount of 
RUR 417 million (US$ 15 mil-
lion) was sold to a third party in 
August 2005 under an assign-
ment agreement and was repaid 
in equal monthly installments by 
the end of 2005.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES (17) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003 

Trade accounts payable 649 875 255

Salary and other benefits payable 157 81 51

Advances received 192 66 48

Dividends payable 60 16 22

Promissory notes payable 2 3 94

Banking customer accounts 252 245 70

Payables under licence agreements (Note 26) – 30 19

Deferred income 3 3 –

Yukos Oil Company debt acquisition liability 
(Note 26) 27 – –

Other 16 67 111

Total Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,358 1,386 670

The Company’s accounts payable are denominated primarily in RUR. Dividends payable represent divi-
dends on shares payable to subsidiaries’ minority shareholders.

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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SHORT-TERM LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT (18)

Short-term loans and borrowings as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

LOANS AND BORROWINGS - US$ DENOMINATED

Bank loans 794 347 63

Bank loans raised for funding the acquisition 
of  OJSC Yuganskneftegaz − 701 –

Other loans for funding the acquisition 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz − 63 –

Customer deposits 42 30 6

Other borrowings 3 19 23

LOANS AND BORROWINGS – RUR DENOMINATED

Bank loans 9 3 8

Bank loans raised for funding the acquisition of 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz − 678 –

Promissory notes payable 657 382 –

Customer deposits 96 135 155

Other borrowings 453 20 3

2,054 2,378 258

Current portion on long-term debt 1,951 998 330

CJSC Sevmorneftegaz share repurchase liability − 1,344 –

Total short-term loans and current portion 
of long-term debt 4,005 4,720 588

The Company’s short-term bank loans 
denominated in US$ were from LIBOR 
plus 1.0% to 3.32% p.a. The RUR de-
nominated loans bear interest rates of 
1.25% to 9% p.a. 
Promissory notes are primarily pay-
able on demand and bear an interest 
rate ranging from 0% to 18%. Inter-
est free promissory notes are record-
ed at amortized cost. 
Customer deposits represent fixed-
term deposits placed by customers 
with the Company’s subsidiary bank, 
denominated in RUR and foreign cur-
rencies. Customer deposits denomi-
nated in RUR bear an interest rate 
ranging from 2.5 to 12.6 % p.a. Cus-
tomer deposits denominated in foreign 

currencies bear an interest rate rang-
ing from 2.0 to 12.0% p.a.
The CJSC Sevmorneftegaz share re-
purchase liability represented a 
prepayment received under the CJSC 
Sevmorneftegaz share purchase 
agreement (see Note 10).
Other RUR-denominated borrowings 
primarily include four loans provided 
to OJSC Yuganskneftegaz by YUKOS 
Capital S.a.r.l., which bear interest 
of 9% p.a. and mature in 2007. As 
of December 31, 2005 these loans 
are classified as current since the 
creditor obtained the right to demand 
early repayment of these loans due to 
non-compliance with the terms of loan 
agreements.

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2005, comprises the following:

2005 2004 2003

Bank loans – US$ denominated 4,220 2,759 2,103

Bank loans raised for funding the acquisition 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz – US$ denominated 5,743 6,465 –

Borrowings – 
US$ denominated 49 67 2

Customer deposits – US$ denominated 8 9 –

Borrowings – 
RUR denominated 9 430 9

Customer deposits – RUR denominated 60 24 2

Bonds of the subsidiary bank – 
RUR denominated 20 21 19

Other long-term liabilities 40 245 15

10,149 10,020 2,150

Current portion of long-term debt (1,951) (998) (330)

Total long-term debt 8,198 9,022 1,820

The rates of interest on the 
Company’s bank loans denomi-
nated in US$ were 4.35% - 
12.92% p.a. Weighted average 
interest rates on these loans 
were 6.58%, 5.50% and 5.37% 
(LIBOR plus 2.19%, LIBOR plus 
3.10%, LIBOR plus 4.25%) 
as of December 31, 2005, 
2004 and 2003 respectively. 
These bank loans are primarily 
secured by contracts for the 
export of crude oil.
In the third quarter of 2005, 
the Company received a 
5-year loan from a syndicate 
of major foreign banks in the 
amount of US$ 2,000 million 
at a rate of LIBOR plus 1.8% 
repayable in equal monthly 
installments. The loan is 
secured by contracts for the 
export of crude oil. This loan 
was used for refinancing short-
term loans in the amount 

of US$ 1,335 million and a 
number of long-term loans in 
the amount of US$ 594 million 
at more favourable terms. 
As of December 31, 2005 the 
bank loans raised for fund-
ing the acquisition of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz represent 
a long-term loan obtained 
through a government-owned 
bank at a rate of LIBOR plus 
3% p.a. repayable in equal 
monthly installments. It is 
scheduled for repayment in 
2011 and is secured by pledg-
ing the Company’s receivables 
under a long-term contract 
for the supply of crude oil (see 
Note 26).
Weighted average interest 
rates on US$ denominated 
borrowings were 8.54%, 
8.79% and 6.12% as of Decem-
ber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 
respectively.

Customer deposits include 
fixed-term RUR and foreign 
currency denominated cus-
tomer deposits placed with 
the Company’s subsidiary bank 
which mature primarily at the 
end of 2006. The RUR- de-
nominated deposits bear an 
interest rate ranging from 4% 
to 12.5% p.a. Deposits denom-
inated in foreign currencies 
bear an interest rate ranging 
from 4% to 9% p.a.
As of December 31, 2005, 
other long-term liabilities in-
clude interest-free promisso-
ry notes which mature at the 
end of 2006. The promissory 
notes are stated at amor-
tized cost and are included in 
the current portion of long-
term debt. 
As discussed in Note 29, the 
interest rate on certain bor-
rowings was reduced.
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As of December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003, the Company’s collateral 
for short-term and long-term loans 
were oil and gas properties in the 
amount of nil, RUR 2,394 million and 
RUR 4,073 million, respectively (US$ 
86 million and US$ 138 million at the 
exchange rate as of December 31, 
2004 and 2003, respectively). The 
decrease is attributable to the repay-
ment of the loan against which the 
assets were collateralized. Gener-
ally, long-term loans are secured by 
oil export contracts. Usually, under 
the terms of such contracts, the lend-
er is provided with an express right of 
claim for contractual revenue which 
must be remitted directly to transit 
currency (US$ denominated) accounts 
with those banks, should the Company 
fail to repay its debt in time.
The Company is obliged to comply with 
a number of restrictive financial and 
other covenants contained within its 
borrowing agreements. Restrictive 
financial covenants include maintain-
ing certain financial ratios. As a result 
of the Company’s acquisition of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz on December 31, 
2004, and the resulting debt incurred 
and assets and liabilities, including 
contingent liabilities, consolidated, the 
Company was not in compliance with 
various financial and other covenants 
of existing loan agreements as of that 
date.
As of December 31, 2004, the long-
term portion of the debt outstand-
ing under loan agreements which 
were in default amounted to US$ 
1,661 million. This debt continued to 
be reflected as long-term in nature 
in the December 31, 2004 consoli-
dated balance sheet. In July 2005, the 
creditors waived violations related to 
restrictive financial ratios and agreed 
to amend the financial ratio covenants 
in line with the Company’s new struc-

ture and new scope of activities. The 
creditors also waived other events 
of default arising from the breach of 
other covenant provisions. To date, 
the creditors have provided waivers 
relating to these provisions which 
have been granted on condition that 
the Company furnishes to the credi-
tors, by no later than December 31, 
2006, acceptable evidence that the 
Company has:

1. Discharged in full, or restructured, 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz’s tax liabili-
ties for 2004 (which should not be 
in excess of a set limit), 

2. Discharged in full, or restructured, 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz’s tax liabili-
ties for the periods 1999 to 2003,

3. Discharged in full, or restructured, 
the indebtedness to YUKOS Capital 
S.a.r.l. in the amount of US$ 445 
million, and,

4. Discharged in full, or restructured, 
the guarantee claims of Societe 
General S.A. related to a US$ 1,600 
million loan (see Note 26). 

These conditions also apply to certain 
new borrowings obtained throughout 
2005 and also subsequent to that 
date. Thus, as of December 31, 2005, 
long-term borrowings, for which cred-
itors waived events of default arising 
from the breach of certain covenant 
provisions, amounted to US$ 2,831 
million. This debt continues to be 
reflected as long-term in nature in the 
December 31, 2005 consolidated bal-
ance sheet. As discussed in Note 26, 
the guarantee claim related to the 
US$ 1,000 million loan, which was 
previously a condition, was discharged 
in full in December 2005 to the sat-
isfaction of the creditor banks. The 
Company’s management believes that 
the other conditions referred to above 
will be fulfilled (see Notes 26 and 29).

The aggregate maturity of long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2005 is as follows (assuming 
the debt will not be called by creditors ahead of scheduled maturities):

2005 

2006 1,951

2007 1,979

2008 2,035

2009 1,990

2010 2,079

2011 and after 115

Total long-term debt 10,149

To finance its current operations and refinance its short-term loans, the Company continues to raise ex-
ternal funding. Operating income depends heavily on oil prices and oil export quotas available to the Com-
pany. In the event of a long-term drop in crude oil prices and a failure to raise external funding, the Com-
pany may be compelled to reduce its capital expenditures thus limiting its ability to maintain or increase 
the current level of oil production. 

SHORT-TERM LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
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SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY (19)

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, 
100% shares of the Company were 
held by the Government of the Russian 
Federation. In June 2005, the Com-
pany’s entire shares were contributed 
to the share capital of OJSC Ros-
neftegaz, wholly owned by the State 
represented by the Federal Agency 
for Federal Property Management. In 
the third quarter of 2005, one share 
in Rosneft was transferred to the 
Federal Agency for Federal Property 
Management.

AMOUNTS AVAILABLE 
FOR DISTRIBUTION 
TO SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts available for distribution 
to shareholders are based on the 
Company’s unconsolidated statutory 
accounts prepared in accordance with 
Russian accounting standards, which 
differ significantly from US GAAP (see 
Note 2). Russian legislation identifies 
the basis of distribution as the cur-
rent period net profit calculated in 

accordance with statutory account-
ing standards. According to Russian 
legislation, dividends cannot exceed 
the accounting income for the report-
ing year. However, this legislation and 
other statutory laws and regulations 
dealing with distribution rights are 
open to different legal interpretation. 
In June 2005, the annual general 
meeting of shareholders declared 
dividends on common shares of 
RUR 1,755 million or US$ 61 mil-
lion for 2004 at the exchange 
rate on the date of that decision, 
or US$ 0.007 per share. 
In the third quarter of 2005, Ros-
neft increased the number of com-
mon shares by splitting one com-
mon share with par value of RUR 1 
into 100 common shares with par 
value of RUR 0.01. As a result the 
total number of shares became 
9,092,174,000. Net earnings per 
share for 2005 and the comparable 
data for 2004 and 2003 were calcu-
lated retrospectively based on the new 
number of outstanding shares.

ACCRUED INCOME 
AND OTHER TAXES (20)

Accrued income and other taxes as of December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

Mineral extraction tax 1,158 994 47

Value added tax 776 282 34

Excise tax 62 14 14

Personal income tax 19 13 6

Property tax 18 24 12

Income tax 644 216 8

Other 133 17 10

Total accrued income and other taxes 2,810 1,560 131

ASSET RETIREMENT 
OBLIGATIONS (21)

The movement of asset retirement obligations is as follows: 

2005 2004 2003

Asset retirement obligations as of the beginning 
of the reporting period 555 126 140

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS 143 
at January 1, 2003 − − (42)

Recognition of additional obligations for new wells 5 5 16

Accretion expense 35 8 12

(Decrease) / increase as a result of change in estimates (27) 29 −

Assumed OJSC Yuganskneftegaz obligations − 387 −

Spending on existing obligations (2) – –

Asset retirement obligations as of the end of the reporting period 566 555 126
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MINORITY INTEREST (22) Minority Interest

Minority owners’ interests in the Company subsidiaries as of December 31 com-
prise the following:

COMPANY

2005 2004 2003

Minority 
interest

Minority
interest 
share in

net assets

Minority
interest

Minority 
interest 
share in 

net assets

Minority
interest

Minority 
interest 
share in 

net assets

% % %

OJSC Rosneft-
Purneftegaz 16.91 317 16.91 194 16.91 158

OJSC Rosneft-
Sakhalinmorneftegaz 35.38 218 35.63 221 36.66 231

OJSC Rosneft-
Krasnodarneftegaz 4.54 16 49.22 101 48.94 85

OJSC Rosneft-
Stavropolneftegaz 24.82 21 28.05 19 28.05 23

OJSC Rosneft-
Tuapse Nefteproduct 62.00 133 62.00 130 62.00 115

OJSC Rosneft-
Komsomolsky Refinery 20.02 11 22.69 13 22.69 12

OJSC Rosneft-
Tuapse Refinery 18.77 12 18.49 10 60.47 30

OJSC Yuganskneftegaz 23.21 1,000 23.21 1,725 – –

Other 132 122 135

Total 1,860 2,535 789

To a significant extent, minority interest in subsidiaries is represented by preferred 
shares.

RIGHTS ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO PREFERRED SHARES 

Unless a different amount is approved 
at the annual shareholders meeting, 
preferred shares earn dividends equal 
to their nominal value. The amount of a 
dividend for a preferred share may not 
be less than the amount of a dividend 
for a common share. 
Preferred shareholders may vote at 
meetings only on the following deci-
sions: the amendment of the dividends 
payable per preferred share; the 
issuance of additional shares with 
rights greater than the current rights 
of preferred shareholders; and the 
liquidation or reorganization of the 
Company.

The decisions listed above, except for 
the liquidation or reorganization of 
the Company, can be made only if ap-
proved by 75% of all shareholders.
Holders of preferred shares acquire 
the same voting rights as holders 
of common shares in the event that 
dividends are either not declared, or 
declared but not paid, on preferred 
shares. On liquidation, the sharehold-
ers are entitled to receive a distribu-
tion of net assets. Under Russian Joint 
Stock Companies law and the Compa-
ny’s charter, in the case of liquidation, 
preferred shareholders have priority 
over ordinary shareholders to be paid 
declared but unpaid dividends on pre-
ferred shares. Upon liquidation pre-
ferred and common shareholders have 

equal rights in distribution of 
liquidation value. 
Dividends on preferred shares 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz 
have not been paid since 1998. 
Therefore preferred share-

holders have equal rights with 
common shareholders with 
respect to questions raised at 
annual shareholders’ meetings.
According to the charters of 
the majority of the Company 

subsidiaries, dividends on 
preferred shares generally 
amount to 10% of net income 
determined in accordance 
with Russian accounting legis-
lation. 

REVENUES AND RELATED TAXES (23)

Revenues include the following taxes and duties:

2005 2004 2003

Oil and gas sales

Export customs duty 5,322 535 272

Excise – – 5

Petroleum products sales and processing fees

Export customs duty 942 171 134

Excise 17 46 25

Support services and other sales

Export customs duty – – –

Excise – 8 –

Total 6,281 760 436

TAXES (24)

Income taxes for the years ended December 31 comprise the following:

2005 2004 2003

Current income tax expense 1,688 309 244

Deferred income tax benefit (79) (11) (43)

Total 1,609 298 201

The Company does not file a consolidated tax return, rather each legal entity files separate tax returns 
with various authorities, primarily in the Russian Federation. 
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TAXES Taxes

Temporary differences between these consolidated financial statements and tax 
records gave rise to the following deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of 
December 31:

2005 2004 2003

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET ARISING FROM 
TAX EFFECT OF:

PSA 1 deferred deductible expenses 101 – –

Asset retirement obligations 54 36 30

Property, plant and equipment 75 74 54

Prepayments and other current assets 14 – –

Accounts receivable 9 15 15

Accounts payable and accruals 32 8 –

Inventories 12 9 6

Long-term investments 5 6 2

Short-term investments 3 1 3

Other 22 – –

Total 327 149 110

Valuation allowance for deferred income tax asset (271) (116) (67)

Deferred income tax asset 56 33 43

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY ARISING FROM 
TAX EFFECT OF:

Long-term liabilities – – (7)

Mineral rights (2,172) (1,641) –

Property, plant and equipment (1,564) (1,213) (68)

Deferred income tax liability (3,736) (2,854) (75)

Net deferred income tax liability (3,680) (2,821) (32)

Deferred income tax liability related to mineral rights and property, plant and 
equipment includes the deferred tax liability assumed as a result of the purchase 
of OJSC Yuganskneftegaz in the amount of US$ 3,590 million and the acquisition of 
additional shares in OJSC Rosneft-Tuapse Refinery in the amount of US$ 38 million. 

Classification of deferred taxes:

2005 2004 2003

Current deferred tax assets 48 28 23

Long-term deferred tax assets 8 5 20

Current deferred tax liabilities (40) – (4)

Long-term deferred tax liabilities (3,696) (2,854) (71)

Although the Company does not pay tax on a consolidated basis, a reconciliation of expected income tax 
expense to the actual tax expense for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Income before income taxes 6,214 1,201 589

Statutory income tax rate 24.00% 24.00% 24.00%

Theoretical income tax expense 1,491 288 141

Add / (deduct) tax effect of:

Income tax interest 66 – –

Change in valuation allowance 155 44 8

Effect of the income tax preferences (128) – –

Previously unrecognized deferred tax asset (24) – –

Permanent accounting differences arising from:

Non-deductible items, net 45 4 70

Foreign exchange effects, net (59) (23) (15)

Other permanent differences 63 (15) (3)

Income taxes 1,609 298 201

OJSC Yuganskneftegaz and OJSC Rosneft-Purneftegaz paid income tax during 2005 at lower rates sub-
ject to a 3.5% - 4% income tax exemption under the regional laws. These laws provide that the income tax 
exemptions are granted to the oil and gas producing companies, which make capital investments, agreed 
with regional administrations, within the respective region and participate in various social projects, 
therefore increasing benefits to the regional budget. These exemptions are granted on an annual basis. 

In addition to income tax, the Company pays other taxes as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Mineral extraction tax 4,716 739 461

Excise tax 224 34 –

Social security 118 98 69

Property tax 73 40 42

Land tax 14 13 9

Transport tax 2 1 1

Tax interest and penalties 64 16 7

Other taxes and payments 53 16 53

Taxes, other than income tax 5,264 957 642
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (25) Related Party Transactions

Total amounts of transactions with companies controlled by the Government of the 
Russian Federation for each of the reporting periods ending December 31, as well 
as related party balances are provided in the table below:

2005 2004 2003

REVENUES

Sales of petroleum products 195 78 53

Sales of gas 19 12 7

Sales of share in CJSC Sevmorneftegaz 
(see Note 10) 1,303 – –

Other revenues 2 1 –

1,519 91 60

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Transportation expenses 1,305 430 361

Other expenses 1 – 10

1,306 430 371

OTHER OPERATIONS

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 9 1 2

Purchases of investments 38 294 128

Sales of investments 38 725 128

Borrowings issued 574 – 214

Borrowings repaid 574 – 313

Loans received 1,527 9,479 513

Loans repaid 3,458 192 305

Deposits placed 1,945 226 82

Deposits paid 1,762 226 83

Interest accrued on loans 487 56 52

Interest accrued on deposits – 1 –

Banking fees 12 2 1

ASSETS

Cash at bank 376 702 28

Trade receivables 23 2 5

Prepayments 154 14 7

Borrowings receivable – – 1

Deposits payable 180 – –

733 718 41

LIABILITIES

Advances received 4 2 3

Loans and borrowings payable (including interest) 6,890 10,506 858

6,894 10,508 861

In the course of its usual activity, the 
Company regularly enters into trans-
actions with other enterprises which 
are directly or indirectly controlled by 
the Russian Government. Such enter-
prises are business units of RAO UES, 
OJSC Gazprom, OJSC Russian Railways, 
OJSC Sberbank, OJSC Vnesheconom-

bank, OJSC Vneshtorgbank, OJSC 
Gazprombank, OJSC Transneft and fed-
eral agencies including tax authorities. 
Management considers these business 
relations as part of regular activities 
in the Russian Federation and believes 
that they will remain unchanged in the 
foreseeable future.

Total amounts of transactions with other related parties, primarily equity investees and joint ventures, 
for each of the reporting periods ending December 31, as well as related party balances are provided in 
the table below:

2005 2004 2003

REVENUES

Oil sales 27 2 2

Sales of petroleum products 50 4 1

Sales of gas – – 4

Inventory sales 1 2 7

Sales of services 56 34 6

Other income 3 – 1

137 42 21

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Purchase of oil – – 4

Purchase of petroleum products 1 6 –

Cost of services 55 22 12

Purchase of inventory 1 1 1

Other expenses 8 3 2

65 32 19

OTHER OPERATIONS

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 73 21 29

Lease payments 29 14 8

Purchase of promissory notes 345 756 1

Proceeds from promissory notes 514 809 43

Dividends received 19 13 –

Borrowings issued 61 63 52

Borrowings repaid 46 52 –

Loans received – 612 –

Loans repaid 8 664 –

To manage its liquidity the Company purchased and sold promissory notes from and to a related finance 
company for the purpose of using them in settlements with suppliers and contractors.

2005 2004 2003

ASSETS

Trade receivables 12 14 3

Prepayments – 4 5

Promissory notes receivable 30 142 199

Loans and borrowings 98 90 36

Other accounts receivable 1 1 1

141 251 244

LIABILITIES

Trade accounts payable 7 8 3

Advances received 1 – –

Promissory notes payable 12 15 –

Loans and borrowings payable (including interest) 2 23 27

Cash at Company’s banks 3 6 3

Deposits at Company’s banks 1 1 21

Other accounts payable – – 1

26 53 55
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (26) Commitments and Contingencies

RUSSIAN BUSINESS 
ENVIRONMENT

The Russian economy, while deemed to 
be of market status, continues to dis-
play certain traits of a market in tran-
sition, for example inflation is relative-
ly high and the existence of currency 
controls, which cause the national 
currency to be illiquid outside Russia. 
In addition laws and regulations, in-
cluding interpretations, enforcement 
and judicial processes, continue to 
evolve in Russia. Other laws and regu-
lations and certain other restrictions 
producing a significant effect on the 
Company’s industry, including, but not 
limited to the following issues: rights 
to use subsurface resources, envi-
ronmental matters, site restoration, 
transportation and export, corporate 
governance, taxation, etc.

TAXATION

Legislation and regulations regarding 
taxation in Russia continue to evolve. 
The various legislation and regula-
tions are not always clearly written 
and their interpretation is subject to 
the opinions of the local, regional and 
national tax authorities. Instances of 
inconsistent opinions are not unusual. 
The current regime of penalties and 
interest related to reported and 
discovered violations of Russia’s laws, 
decrees and related regulations is 
severe. Interest and penalties are 
levied when an understatement of a 
tax liability is discovered. As a re-
sult, penalties and interest can result 
in amounts higher than unreported 
taxes. 
In Russia tax declarations remain open 
and subject to inspection for a period 
of up to three years. The fact that a 
year has been reviewed does not close 
that year, or any tax declaration appli-
cable to that year, from further review 
during the three-year period.
Russian transfer pricing rules were 

introduced in 1999, giving Russian tax 
authorities the right to make trans-
fer pricing adjustments and impose 
additional tax liabilities in respect of 
all controlled transactions, provided 
that the transaction price differs 
from the market price by more than 
20%. Controlled transactions include 
transactions between related entities 
and certain other types of transac-
tions between independent parties, 
such as foreign trade transactions 
with significant (by more than 20%) 
price fluctuations. The Russian trans-
fer pricing rules are vaguely drafted, 
leaving wide scope for interpretation 
by Russian tax authorities and courts. 
Due to the uncertainties in interpre-
tation of transfer pricing legislation, 
the tax authorities may challenge the 
Group’s prices and propose adjust-
ments. If such price adjustments are 
upheld by the Russian courts and 
implemented, the Group’s future 
financial results could be adversely 
affected. In addition, the Group could 
face significant losses associated with 
the assessment of prior tax underpaid 
and related interest and penalties, 
which could have an adverse effect on 
the Group’s financial condition and re-
sults of operations. The Group believes 
that such transfer pricing related tax 
contingencies are remote rather than 
possible or probable and cannot be 
reasonably estimated.
During 2004 several tax audits of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz for 1999-2003 years 
took place and their results have been 
appealed in court (see the “Litigation” 
caption below). 
During 2005 tax audits of several 
subsidiaries for the years 2002-2003 
took place. The results of these tax 
audits are currently being appealed 
with the tax authorities. The Company 
believes that the resolution of these 
matters will not result in any material 
tax payments.
Overall, management believes that the 
Group has paid or accrued all taxes 

that are applicable. Where un-
certainty exists, the Group has 
accrued tax liabilities based on 
management’s best estimate 
of the probable outflow of re-
sources embodying economic 
benefits, which will be required 
to settle these liabilities. Pos-
sible liabilities which were 
identified by management at 
the balance sheet date as 
those that can be subject to 
different interpretations of 
the tax laws and regulations 
are not accrued in the consoli-
dated financial statements.

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
FOR EXPLORATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT 
OF PRODUCTION FACILITIES, 
AND MODERNIZATION 
OF REFINERIES AND 
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

The Company and its subsidi-
aries are engaged in ongoing 
capital projects for exploration 
and development of production 
facilities and modernization 
of refineries and the distribu-
tion network. The budgets for 
these projects are generally 
set on an annual basis. De-
pending on the current market 
situation, actual expenditures 
may vary from the budgeted 
amounts.
Following the acquisition of 
the additional share of 40% 
in TNPZ, 100% of the re-
finery’s crude oil supplies 
come from the Company. This 
also facilitated the launch of 
large-scale work aimed at the 
modernization of the refinery. 
The modernization is aimed at 
increasing commercial effi-
ciency, capacity of the refinery 
and the petroleum product 
yield ratio.

It is planned that future costs 
will be primarily self-financed. 
In addition, the Company is 
seeking external sources of 
financing. Management be-
lieves that the Company will 
receive all the finance required 
to complete both existing and 
scheduled projects.

ENVIRONMENTAL 
MATTERS

Due to the nature of its busi-
ness, Rosneft and its subsidi-
aries are subject to legisla-
tion regulating environmental 
protection and the conser-
vation of natural resources. 
The majority of its liabilities 
entailed through violation 
of this legislation arise as a 
result of accidental oil spills 
and leaks that pollute land, 
water and the environment in 
general beyond the allowable 
level. The Company considers 
fines paid and other environ-
mental liabilities as imma-
terial, given the scale of its 
operations.
In the course of its operations, 
the Company seeks to comply 
with international environ-
mental standards and moni-
tors compliance therewith on 
a regular basis. With a view 
to improve environmental 
activities, the Company takes 
a number of measures to 
mitigate the adverse impact of 
its current operations on the 
environment. Thus, the Com-
pany has developed a Com-
prehensive Environmental and 
Production Safety Program. 
In 2000, Rosneft signed an 
agreement with the RF Min-
istry for Emergencies that 
provides for the establishment 
of Environment Protection 

Centers to reduce the risk of 
pollution in the regions where 
Rosneft operates. 
Legislation that regulates en-
vironmental protection in the 
Russian Federation is evolving, 
and the Company evaluates its 
liabilities in accordance there-
with. Currently it is not pos-
sible to reasonably estimate 
the liabilities of the Company 
which may be incurred should 
the legislation be amended (if 
amended at all). 
The management believes that, 
based on the existing legisla-
tion, the Company is unlikely 
to have liabilities that need to 
be accrued in addition to the 
amounts already recognized 
in the consolidated financial 
statements and that may have 
a material adverse effect on 
the operating results or finan-
cial position of the Company.
See also Note 29.

PENSION 
PLANS

The Company and its subsidi-
aries make contributions to 
the State Pension Fund of the 
Russian Federation, which 
requires current contributions 
by the employer calculated 
as a percentage of current 
gross salary payments. Such 
contributions are charged to 
expense as incurred.
The Company participates 
in a corporate pension fund 
to finance non-government 
pensions for its employees. 
The fund operates the defined 
contribution pension plan. 
The Company contributed to 
the corporate pension fund 
US$ 16 million, US$ 13 million, 
and US$ 17 million in 2005, 
2004 and 2003, respectively.
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INSURANCE

The Company insures its assets 
through the insurance company SK 
Neftepolis LLC, a related party. 
As of December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003, the amount of coverage 
on assets for such insurance was 
US$ 1,420 million, US$ 661 million 
and US$ 2,264 million, respectively.
Russian insurance providers do not 
offer business interruption insurance. 
Currently, it is not common practice in 
Russia to obtain such insurance.

SOCIAL 
COMMITMENTS

The Company possesses social infra-
structure assets for use by employees. 
In accordance with the Presidential 
Edict on privatization in Russia, the 
Company is required to transfer social 
infrastructure assets to the relevant 
local city administrations without 
significant consideration. Accordingly, 
as the Company does not have own-
ership of these assets, they are not 
recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements. However, the Company is 
required to maintain these assets.
The Company incurred US$ 66 million, 
US$ 81 million and US$ 81 million 
in social infrastructure and similar 
expenses in 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. These expenses are 
presented as other expenses in the 
consolidated statement of income and 
comprehensive income.

CHARITY 
AND SPONSORSHIP

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
the Company made donations of 
US$ 25 million, US$ 44 million and 
US$ 53 million, respectively, for char-

ity and sponsorship in various regions 
of Russia where the Company oper-
ates. These expenses are presented 
as other expenses in the consolidated 
statement of income and comprehen-
sive income.

GUARANTEES 
AND INDEMNITY

As of December 31, 2005, the Com-
pany has provided guarantees for 
certain debt agreements. In accord-
ance with the loan agreements, the 
Company is obliged to perform on 
the guarantee and to pay the bank all 
amounts of outstanding guaranteed 
liabilities, including interest, upon the 
bank’s request. 
The Company cannot substitute guar-
antees issued by any novation agree-
ment or mutual offset. The Company’s 
obligations under guarantees issued 
are valid in case of any change in loan 
agreements. 
After the full payment and settlement 
of all obligations under the guarantees, 
the Company has the right to subro-
gate its respective part of all bank 
claims against the debtor in accord-
ance with the loan agreement. In the 
event the Company makes payments 
under guarantees issued, it has a right 
to claim the amounts paid from the 
debtor.
The Company and a group of banks led 
by Societe Generale S.A. entered into 
an agreement granting the Company 
the right to claim the outstanding bal-
ance due from Yukos Oil Company un-
der the syndicated loan of US$ 1,000 
million. Under the above agreement, 
the right to claim the debt was trans-
ferred from the banks to the Company 
in March 2006 upon the payment of 
the outstanding loan principal, accrued 
interest, legal and other fees in the 

amount totaling US$ 483 mil-
lion. As of December 31, 2005 
the Company’s obligation to the 
banks under the above agree-
ment was recorded within 
accounts payable as Yukos Oil 
Company debt acquisition li-

ability (Note 17) in the amount 
of the probable loss element on 
the transaction. The Company 
estimates the acquired debt 
will be repaid or otherwise 
recovered by early 2007.
Payments were made under 

this agreement during March 
2006. As a result, the guar-
antee obligations of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz with respect 
to the loan described above 
have become intercompany in 
nature.

The Company’s other outstanding guarantees as of December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Beneficiary Bank Loan 
debtor

Maturity 
date

Contractual principal
amount 

Amount of outstanding 
liability (principal amount) 
as of December 31, 2005

Societe Generale S.A 
(as Facility Agent) Yukos Oil Company May 29, 2009 1,600 656

ABN AMRO OJSC Rosneftegaz December 30, 2008 7,500 7,227

In May 2005, Moravel Invest-
ments Limited, an affiliate of 
Yukos Oil Company, filed an 
arbitral claim against OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz in the Lon-
don Court of International 
Arbitration for the recovery of 
US$ 662 million pertaining to 
the loan of US$ 1,600 million 
from Societe Generale S.A. 
The Company is contesting 
the claim vigorously. The case 
will be heard in July 2006. The 

Company believes that the 
probability of any payments 
under the above guarantee is 
remote. On March 17, 2006 
the Moscow Arbitration 
Court ruled that the guar-
antee agreement signed by 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz with 
respect to Yukos Oil Company 
loan received from Societe 
Generale S.A. in the amount 
of US$ 1,600 million was 
invalid. Though this resolution 

will be challenged by Yukos 
Oil Company in accordance 
with generally accepted legal 
practices the management be-
lieves that this ruling supports 
the Company’s position in the 
London Court of International 
Arbitration.
The Company agreed to indem-
nify ONGC for losses in the 
event the Russian PSA Partici-
pants lose their equity interest 
in the project.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Commitments and Contingencies
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LITIGATION, 
CLAIMS AND ASSESSMENTS

In April 2004, the Nenets Autonomous 
Area (“NAA”) Administration filed a 
lawsuit in the Moscow Arbitration 
Court against OJSC Northern Oil for 
the recovery of US$ 19 million relat-
ing to an unfunded obligation to NAA 
(which was recorded in the financial 
statement as of December 31, 2004) 
and a US$ 11 million penalty for the 
late payment of contributions to the 
social and economic development of 
the NAA under the licence agreement 
with OJSC Northern Oil.
Following a number of court hearings 
and appeals the licence agreement 
clauses dealing with contributions to 
the NAA Administration were deter-
mined to be void. Based on this, all 
previously accrued liabilities and penal-
ties were reversed in the consolidated 
financial statements.
As of December 31, 2005, OJSC
Yuganskneftegaz had unresolved dis-
putes with the tax authorities on deci-
sions issued as a result of tax audits 
for 1999-2003 in the total amount 
of US$ 4,676 million. As described in 
Note 29, as a result of court hear-
ings the amount of such taxes claimed 
was subsequently reduced to US$ 
760 million. These court decisions can 
be appealed before May 25, 2006, 
however the Company’s management 
believes that the probability of the ap-
peal (if any) not being upheld is remote. 
Based on the above court decisions 
the estimated tax liabilities (includ-
ing fines) accrued as of September 
30, 2005 were decreased by RUR 1.3 
billion (US$ 45 million at December 
31, 2005 CBR rate), but the additional 
interest in the amount of RUR 4.6 
billion (US$ 160 million at December 
31, 2005 CBR rate) have been ac-
crued. Such additional penalties include 
both the interest calculated based on 
the final amount of 1999-2003 tax 
liabilities and also the interest relating 

to 2004 tax liabilities of OJSC Yugansk-
neftegaz which were outstanding as of 
December 31, 2004. Accordingly, the 
total additional income tax and other 
tax liabilities relating to OJSC Yugansk-
neftegaz accrued as of December 31, 
2005 amounted to US$ 922 million. 
In 2002 an option agreement was 
entered into between Total E&P Vankor 
(Total) and Anglo-Siberian Oil Company 
Limited (ASOC) (see Note 4) under 
which Total had a conditional option to 
buy the latter’s 60% stake in Tay-
myrneft LLC which ASOC held through 
Anglo-Siberian Oil Company Limited 
(Cyprus) (ASOC Cyprus) for US$ 1 mil-
lion. ASOC and ASOC Cyprus belong to 
the Rosneft International Group (see 
Note 1). Total obtained injunctions in 
various jurisdictions to prevent ASOC 
Cyprus from trading in the shares of 
Taymyrneft LLC. In 2005 Total filed for 
arbitration under the option agree-
ment requesting the specific perform-
ance under the option agreement or 
alternatively damages of US$ 430 
million. The Company’s management 
believes that the claim is without merit 
and the option is not exercisable. Be-
yond professional fees, which are not 
material to the Company, it is unclear 
whether any further liabilities will be 
incurred but the Company’s manage-
ment does not believe these will be 
material.
During 2004 Total E&P Vankor filed 
a claim against ASOC Cyprus for 
US$ 640 million under the sale and 
purchase agreement for 52% in Eni-
seineft LLC. Total alleged that under 
the terms of a sale agreement, the 
shareholding in Eniseineft LLC should 
have been sold to them. The Company 
has contested this on the grounds that 
the relevant conditions precedent to 
the sale had not been met. The arbi-
tration proceedings were completed 
during late 2005 and a decision is 
expected in June 2006 .
The Company is a co-defendant in the 
litigation in the USA in respect of the 

acquisition of OJSC Yugansk-
neftegaz. This litigation was 
brought by certain holders of 
American Depository Receipts 
(“ADRs”) of Yukos Oil Company 
seeking US$ 3 million in dam-
ages due to the fall in market 
value of the ADRs. The Com-
pany believes that this claim is 
without merit. 
The Company is also a co-de-
fendant in litigation in the 
Moscow Arbitration Court 
with respect to the auction for 
the common shares of OJSC 
Yuganskneftegaz. This litiga-
tion was brought by Yukos 
Oil Company. The claimant is 
seeking to recover all the com-
mon shares of OJSC Yugan-
skneftegaz and also damages 
in the total amount of RUR 
388 billion (approximately 
US$ 13 billion at the CBR rate 
as of December 31, 2005). The 
court hearings have been post-

poned for an indefinite period. 
The Company believes that this 
claim is without merit.
The Company’s subsidiaries 
are involved in other litigations 
which arise from time to time 
in the course of their business 
activities. The Company’s man-
agement believes that the ulti-
mate result of these litigations 
will not significantly affect the 
operating results or financial 
position of the Company.

LICENSE 
AGREEMENTS

In accordance with certain 
licence agreements or sepa-
rate agreements concluded 
from time to time with the 
local and regional authorities 
the Company is required to 
maintain certain levels of ex-
penditures for health, safety 
and environmental protection, 

as well as maintain certain 
level of capital expenditures. 
Generally these expenditures 
are within the normal op-
erating and capital budgets 
and are accounted for when 
incurred in accordance with 
existing accounting policies 
for respective costs and ex-
penses.

OIL 
SUPPLIES

In January 2005, the Com-
pany entered into a long-term 
contract until 2010 with 
China National United Oil 
Corporation for export sup-
plies of crude oil in the total 
amount of 48.4 million tonnes 
to be delivered in equal an-
nual amounts. The prices are 
determined based on usual 
commercial terms for crude 
oil deliveries. 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Commitments and Contingencies

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (27)

Presented below is informa-
tion about the Company’s 
operating segments in ac-
cordance with SFAS 131, 
Disclosures about Segments 
of an Enterprise and Related 
Information. The Company 
determines its operating seg-
ments based on differences in 
the nature of their operations. 
The performance of these op-
erating segments is assessed 
by management on a regular 
basis. The exploration and 
production segment is en-
gaged in field exploration and 
development and production 
of crude oil and natural gas. 

The refinery, marketing and 
distribution segment is en-
gaged in processing crude oil 
and other hydrocarbons into 
petroleum products, as well 
as purchasing, sale and trans-
portation of crude oil and pe-
troleum products. The other 
activities segment consists 
of banking, finance services, 
drilling services, construction 
services and other activities. 
Substantially all of the Com-
pany’s operations are con-
ducted in the Russian Federa-
tion. Further, the geographical 
regions within the Russian 
Federation have substantially 

similar economic and regula-
tory conditions. Therefore, the 
Company has not presented 
any separate geographical 
disclosure.
The segments are combina-
tions of subsidiaries (see 
Note 1). The significant ac-
counting policies applied to 
each segment are consistent 
with those applied to the con-
solidated financial statements. 
Sales transactions for goods 
and services between the seg-
ments are carried out using 
prices agreed upon between 
the Company and its subsidi-
aries.

ANNUAL REPORT



76 77

SEGMENT INFORMATION Segment Information

Operating segments in 2005:

Exploration and 
production

Refining, 
marketing and 

distribution

Other 
activities

Total 
Elimination Consolidated

Revenues from external 
customers 378 23,239 334 – 23,951

Intersegmental revenues 9,534 797 297 (10,628) –

Total revenues 9,912 24,036 631 (10,628) 23,951

Operating expenses and 
cost of purchased oil and 
petroleum products

1,303 988 64 – 2,355

Depreciation, depletion and 
amortization 1,320 143 9 – 1,472

Operating income 1,781 13,903 467 (10,628) 5,523

Total other income, net 691

Income before income tax 6,214

Total assets 23,005 5,841 1,170 – 30,016

Operating segments in 2004:

Exploration and
production

Refining, 
marketing and 

distribution

Other 
activities

Total 
Elimination Consolidated

Revenues from external 
customers 226 4,818 231 – 5,275

Intersegmental revenues 1,899 317 275 (2,491) –

Total revenues 2,125 5,135 506 (2,491) 5,275

Operating expenses and 
cost of purchased oil and 
petroleum products

344 682 129 – 1,155

Depreciation, depletion and 
amortization 193 103 11 – 307

Operating income 590 2,818 289 (2,491) 1,206

Total other expenses, net (5)

Income before income tax 1,201

Total assets 21,282 3,653 1,077 – 26,012

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Operating segments in 2003:

Exploration and
production

Refining, 
marketing and 

distribution
Other activities Total Elimination Consolidated

Revenues from external 
customers 383 3,104 154 – 3,641

Intersegmental revenues 1,069 202 218 (1,489) –

Total revenues 1,452 3,306 372 (1,489) 3,641

Operating expenses and cost 
of purchased oil and petroleum 
products

270 481 59 – 810

Depreciation, depletion and 
amortization 225 67 10 – 302

Operating income 191 1,734 228 (1,489) 664

Total other expenses, net (75)

Income before income tax 589

Total assets 1,880 4,577 311 – 6,768

Below is a breakdown of revenues by domestic and export sales, with a classification of export sales 
based on the country of incorporation of the foreign customer. 

2005 2004 2003

OIL AND GAS SALES

Domestic sales of crude oil 600 104 71

Domestic sales of gas 175 118 79

Export sales of crude oil – CIS 1,491 411 177

Export sales of crude oil – Europe 11,539 1,689 1,091

Export sales of crude oil – Asia 2,303 353 246

Export sales of crude oil – other directions 94 60 50

Total oil and gas sales 16,202 2,735 1,714

PETROLEUM PRODUCTS AND PROCESSING FEES

Domestic sales of petroleum products 
and processing fees 2,865 1,249 913

Export sales of petroleum products – CIS 64 – –

Export sales of petroleum products – Europe 3,726 506 427

Export sales of petroleum products – South-East Asia 719 478 384

Total petroleum products and processing fees 7,374 2,233 1,724

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
different single customers in 
each year, which are interna-
tional oil traders accounted for 
revenues of US$ 5,041 mil-

lion, US$ 831 million and 
US$ 543 million or 21%, 16% 
and 15% of gross revenues, 
respectively. These revenues 
are recognized mainly under 

the Refining, Marketing and 
Distribution segment. Man-
agement does not believe that 
the Company is dependent on 
any particular customer.

ANNUAL REPORT



78 79

The Company, in connection with 
its current activities, is exposed to 
various financial risks, such as foreign 
currency risks, interest rate risks and 
credit risks. 
The Company manages these risks and 
monitors its exposure on a regular ba-
sis. The Company does not use hedge 
or derivative financial instruments.
The fair value of cash and cash equiva-
lents, accounts receivable and ac-
counts payable, promissory notes 
receivable and liquid securities ap-
proximates their carrying value recog-
nized in these financial statements. The 
Company’s management believes that 
accounts receivable recorded net of 
allowance for doubtful accounts will be 
recovered in full during an acceptable 
time period. The fair value of long-term 
accounts receivable included in other 
non-current assets approximates 
the discounted amounts recognized 
in these financial statements and is 
calculated using the estimated market 
interest rate for similar operations. 
The fair value of long-term debt dif-

fers from amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements. The 
estimated fair value of long-term debt 
discounted using the estimated market 
interest rate for similar financial liabili-
ties amounted to US$ 10,026 million, 
US$ 10,012 million and US$ 2,153 mil-
lion as of December 31, 2005, 2004 
and 2003, respectively. These amounts 
include all future cash outflows related 
to the repayment of long-term loans, 
including their current portion and 
interest expenses. 
A substantial portion of the Compa-
ny’s sales revenues is received in US 
dollars. In addition, substantial financ-
ing and investing activities, obligations 
and commitments are also undertaken 
in US dollars. However, some operat-
ing and investing expenditures, other 
obligations and commitments as well 
as tax liabilities are undertaken in ru-
bles. As a result of the US dollar drop 
against the ruble, the Company is ex-
posed to the corresponding currency 
risk, which is considerably mitigated 
by the recent increase in oil prices.

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (28)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (29)

In January 2006, the Company, 
through one of its subsidiaries, pur-
chased an additional share of the 
39.26% of voting stock (30.24% of 
the share capital) of OJSC Rosneft – 
Tuapse Nefteproduct. The purchase 
price amounted to US$ 100 million. 
After the purchase, the Company’s 
share in OJSC Rosneft – Tuapse Re-
finery amounts to 89.93% of voting 
shares (68.24% of the share capital).
In January 2006, a subsidiary of 
the Company registered in Cyprus 
signed a loan agreement with a major 
Western bank for an amount up to 

EUR 188 million or US$ 223 million 
using the CBR rate as of the balance 
sheet date. The loan bears an interest 
rate of EURIBOR plus 0.35%. The first 
drawdown was made during February-
March 2006 in the amount of EUR 90 
million or US$ 107 million using the 
CBR rate as of the balance sheet date. 
Funds borrowed are to be invested 
in the construction of ice-reinforced 
tankers for crude oil transportation 
purposes in north-western regions 
of the Russian Federation. The loan 
is scheduled to be repaid within the 
twelve years following the completion 

of tanker construction. 
In February 2006, the Com-
pany signed a loan agreement 
with a syndicate of Western 
banks for US$ 2,000 million 
with a term of 5 years. The 
loan bears interest at LIBOR 
plus 0.65% p.a. In March 
2006, the Company received 
US$ 575 million under this 
loan agreement and used 
these funds to repay loans 
with less favourable terms.
In March 2006, a production 
licence for the Vostochno-
Sugdinskoe oil field located 
in the Irkutsk region was 
purchased as a result of an 
auction won by the Company in 
December 2005. The out-
standing portion of the pur-
chase consideration for this 
license was paid in the amount 
of RUR 7,170 million (US$ 249 
million at the CBR rate as of 
December 31,2005).
In March 2006, a banking 
consortium led by Societe 
Generale S.A. filed a petition 
with the Moscow Arbitration 
Court for the bankruptcy of 
Yukos Oil Company. On March 
28, 2006, the Moscow Ar-
bitration Court introduced a 
three-month temporary ex-

ternal observation procedure 
for Yukos Oil Company and 
appointed an Interim Receiver. 
Also in March 2006 follow-
ing the Company’s acquisi-
tion of Yukos Oil Company’s 
debts in the amount of US$ 
483 million from the banking 
consortium, the Moscow Ar-
bitration court approved the 
replacement of the claimant 
with respect to this debt. The 
first meeting of the creditors 
is currently scheduled for 
June, 2006.
During January-April 2006 
the Company prematurely 
redeemed bank loans from 
a State owned bank in the 
amount of US$ 944 million 
and bank loans from Russian 
commercial and interna-
tional banks in the amount of 
US$ 453 million.
In April 2006, the Company 
executed several agreements 
granting it a decrease in the 
interest rate to LIBOR plus 
0.7% p.a. for outstanding loans 
totalling US$ 5,730 million as 
of December 31, 2005 and 
to LIBOR plus 0.65% p.a. for 
outstanding loans totalling 
US$ 3,177 million as of De-
cember 31, 2005.

In April 2006, the Moscow Ar-
bitration Court ruled to reduce 
the total amount of tax claims 
to OJSC Yuganskneftegaz to 
US$ 760 million including in-
terest and penalties. This rul-
ing may be subject to further 
appeal by the tax authorities, 
however the Company believes 
that no further claims will be 
imposed, and amounts already 
accrued in the consolidated 
financial statements are ap-
propriate. (See Note 26).
On May 5, 2006 the Rosneft 
Board of Directors recom-
mended to shareholders’ meet-
ing to declare annual dividends 
for common stock in the 
amount of RUR 11,336 million 
(US$ 394 million at the CBR 
rate as of December 31, 2005). 
This amount is approximately 
US$ 0.04 per share at the CBR 
rate as of December 31, 2005.
In the first half of 2006 the 
Company won a number of 
auctions for the exploration 
and development of oil and gas 
fields in the Krasnoyarsk and 
Irkutsk regions. The total cost 
of acquisitions amounted to 
RUR 7.9 billion (US$ 274 
million at the CBR rate as of 
December 31, 2005).
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In accordance with SFAS 69, Dis-
closures about Oil and Gas Produc-
ing Activities, the Company makes 
certain supplemental disclosures 
about its oil and gas exploration 
and production operations. While 
this information was developed with 
reasonable care and disclosed in 
good faith, it is emphasized that the 

data represents management’s best 
estimates. Accordingly, this informa-
tion may not necessarily represent 
the current financial condition of 
the Company and its expected future 
financial results.
All of the Company’s activities are 
conducted in Russia, which is consid-
ered as one geographic area.

Capitalized costs relating to oil and gas producing activities

As of December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Oil and gas properties related 
to proved reserves 23,218 17,991 5,546

Oil and gas properties related 
to unproved reserves 1,382 1,041 266

Total 24,600 19,032 5,812

Accumulated depreciation, depletion 
and amortization, and valuation 
allowances

(3,661) (2,492) (2,520)

Net capitalized costs 20,939 16,540 3,292

The share of the Company in the capitalized costs of equity investees was immate-
rial during 2005, 2004 and 2003.

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURE 
(UNAUDITED)

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

Cost incurred in oil and gas property acquisition, exploration and development ac-
tivities

2005 2004 2003

Acquisition of proved oil and gas properties 3,475 11,877 512

Acquisition of unproved oil and gas properties 341 775 266

Exploration costs 194 51 18

Development costs 1,752 568 577

Total costs incurred 5,762 13,271 1,373

Acquisition costs of oil and gas properties in 2005 include the effect of the pur-
chase price adjustment related to OJSC Yuganskneftegaz (see Note 4). 

The share of the Company in acquisition, exploration and development expenditures 
of its equity investees was immaterial during 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Results of operations for oil & gas producing activities

2005 2004 2003

REVENUES:

External sales 378 226 383

Transfers to other operating segments 9,534 1,899 1,069

Total revenues 9,912 2,125 1,452

Production costs (excluding production taxes) 1,303 344 271

Selling, general and administrative expenses 266 77 146

Pipeline tariffs and transportation costs 28 7 22

Exploration expense 194 51 18

Accretion expense 35 8 12

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 1,320 193 225

Taxes other than income tax 4,985 855 567

Income tax 777 68 (12)

Results of operation for producing activities 1,004 522 203

Transfers represent crude oil transferred between the operating segments. Such amounts are valued us-
ing prices agreed upon between the Company and its subsidiaries based on domestic prices for crude oil.

The Company’s share in the results of operations for oil and gas production of equity investees was imma-
terial during 2005, 2004 and 2003.

RESERVE QUANTITY 
INFORMATION

For the purposes of evaluation 
of reserves as of December 
31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 the 
Company used the oil and gas 
reserve information prepared 
by DeGolyer & MacNaughton, 
independent reservoir engi-
neers, prepared in accordance 
with United States Securities 
and Exchange Commission 
definitions. Proved reserves 
are those estimated quanti-
ties of crude oil and gas which, 
by analysis of geological and 
engineering data, demonstrate 
with reasonable certainty to 
be recoverable in the future 
from existing reservoirs 
under the existing economic 
and operating conditions. In 
certain cases, recovery of 
such reserves may require 
considerable investments in 
wells and related equipment. 

Proved reserves also include 
additional oil and gas reserves 
that will be extracted after the 
expiry date of licence agree-
ments or may be discovered 
as a result of secondary and 
tertiary extraction which 
have been successfully tested 
and checked for commercial 
benefit. Proved developed 
reserves are the quantities 
of crude oil and gas expected 
to be recovered from existing 
wells using existing equipment 
and operating methods. 
Proved undeveloped oil and 
gas reserves are reserves 
that are expected to be 
recovered from new wells on 
undrilled acreage, or from 
existing wells where a rela-
tively major expenditure is 
required for recompletion. 
Reserves on undrilled acreage 
are limited to those drilling 
units offsetting productive 
units that are reasonably 

certain of production when 
drilled. Proved reserves for 
other undrilled units can be 
claimed only where it can be 
demonstrated with certainty 
that there is continuity of 
production from the existing 
productive formation. Under 
no circumstances are esti-
mates of proved undeveloped 
reserves attributable to any 
acreage for which an applica-
tion of fluid injection or other 
improved recovery technique 
is contemplated, unless those 
techniques have been proved 
effective by actual tests in the 
area and in the same reservoir. 
Net reserves include quanti-
ties of reserves attributable to 
the Company’s share in depos-
its. Due to inherent industry 
uncertainties and the limited 
nature of deposit data, esti-
mates of reserves are subject 
to change as additional infor-
mation becomes available.
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SUPPLEMENTARY OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURE 
(UNAUDITED)

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

The accompanying notes 
to the consolidated financial statements

The Company’s estimates of net proved oil and gas reserves and changes thereto 
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are shown in the table 
below (oil production data was recalculated from tonnes to barrels using a ratio of 
7.3 barrels per tonne, gas production data was recalculated from cubic meters to 
barrels of oil equivalent using a ratio of 35.3/6 cubic meters per barrel):

2005 2004 2003

mln. bbl. mln. bbl. mln. bbl.

Beginning of year reserves 12,744 3,346 3,399

Revisions of previous estimates (373) 330 (294)

Increase and discovery of new reserves 63 – –

Acquisitions of new properties – 9,216 374

Production (621) (148) (133)

End of year reserves 11,813 12,744 3,346

Proved developed reserves 8,507 8,355 2,307

Minority interest in total proved 
reserves 2,393 2,728 587

Minority interest in proved developed 
reserves 1,732 1,847 461

The minority interest in proved developed and total proved reserves mainly relates to 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. 
The increase in acquisition of new properties primarily relates to proved reserves of 
OJSC Yuganskneftegaz. 
The Company’s share in the proved reserves of equity investees was immaterial during 
2005, 2004 and 2003.

STANDARDIZED MEASURE 
OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE 
NET CASH FLOWS 
AND CHANGES THEREIN 
RELATING TO PROVED 
OIL AND GAS RESERVES

The standardized measure of 
discounted future net cash 
flows related to the above oil 
and gas reserves is calculated 
in accordance with the require-
ments of SFAS 69. Estimated 
future cash inflows from oil and 
gas production are computed 
by applying year-end prices for 
oil and gas to year-end quanti-
ties of estimated net proved 
reserves. Adjustment in this 
calculation for future price 
changes is limited to those re-
quired by contractual arrange-
ments in existence at the end of 
each reporting period. Future 

development and production 
costs are those estimated fu-
ture expenditures necessary to 
develop and produce estimated 
proved reserves as of year-end 
based on year-end cost indices 
and assuming continuation of 
year end economic conditions. 
Estimated future income taxes 
are calculated by applying ap-
propriate year-end statutory 
tax rates. These rates reflect 
allowable deductions and tax 
credits and are applied to esti-
mated future net pre-tax cash 
flows, net of the tax bases of 
related assets. 
Discounted future net cash 
flows are calculated using a 10% 
discount factor. Discounting re-
quires a year-by-year estimates 
of future expenditures to be 
incurred in the periods when the 
reserves will be extracted.

The information provided in the 
tables below does not repre-
sent management’s estimates 
of the Company’s expected 
future cash flows or of the 
value of its proved oil and gas 
reserves. Estimates of proved 
reserves change over time 
as new information becomes 
available. Moreover, probable 
and possible reserves which 
may become proved in the 
future are excluded from the 
calculations. The arbitrary 
valuation prescribed under 
SFAS 69 requires assump-
tions as to the timing and the 
amount of future development 
and production costs. The cal-
culations should not be relied 
upon as an indication of the 
Company’s future cash flows 
or of the value of its oil and gas 
reserves.

The Company included in proved 
reserves those reserves which the 
Company intends to extract after the 
expiry of the current licences. The 
licences for the development and 
production of hydrocarbons currently 
held by the Company expire between 
2006 and 2026, and the licences for 
the most important deposits expire 
between 2013 and 2019. In accord-
ance with the effective version of the 
law of the Russian Federation, On 
Subsurface Resources (the “Law”), 
licences are currently granted for a 
production period determined on the 
basis of technological and economic 
criteria applied to the development 
of a mineral deposit which guarantee 

rational use of subsurface resources 
and necessary environmental pro-
tection. In accordance with the Law 
and upon gradual expiration of old 
licences issued under the previous 
version of the Law, the Company 
extends its hydrocarbon production 
licences for the whole productive life 
of the fields. Extension of the licences 
depends on both current and future 
compliance with the terms set forth 
in the licence agreements. As of the 
date of these financial statements, 
the Company is generally in compli-
ance with all the terms of the licence 
agreements and intends to continue 
complying with such terms in the 
future (see Note 11).

2005 2004 2003

Future cash inflows 274,619 214,887 51,708

Future development costs (12,507) (22,170) (3,767)

Future production costs (80,564) (79,302) (25,180)

Future income tax expenses (43,291) (27,740) (5,673)

Future net cash flows 138,257 85,675 17,088

Discount of estimated timing of cash flows (87,100) (56,499) (10,020)

Discounted value of future cash flows as of 
the end of year 51,157 29,176 7,068

Discounted value of future cash flows as of 
the beginning of year 29,176 7,068 6,661

Sales and transfers of oil and gas produced, net of production costs and taxes 
other than income taxes (8,131) (1,536) (1,261)

Changes in price estimates, net 26,798 3,808 (1,313)

Changes in future development costs 3,471 (2,751) (825)

Development costs incurred during the period 1,752 568 577

Revisions of previous reserves estimates 953 415 (436)

Discovery of new reserves, less respective expenses 115 – –

Net change in income taxes (5,224) (389) 138

Accretion of discount 2,918 707 666

Purchase of new oil and gas fields – 22,143 873

Other (671) (857) 1,988

Discounted value of future cash flows as of 
the end of year 51,157 29,176 7,068

Discounted value of future cash flows as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 includes the interest of other 
(minority) shareholders in the amount of US$ 10,574 million, US$ 6,431 million and US$ 1,375 million, respectively.
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